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BNPC STRATEGIC FOUNDATIONS AND QUALITY POLICY

VISION
Leader in driving national productivity.
BNPC will lead in transforming the current productivity landscape in Botswana across differing sectors, 
enterprises, and community groups. The leadership will be demonstrated by coordinating key stakeholders 
in order to co-create and deliver value adding national productivity improvement initiatives for Botswana.

VALUES
Collaboration

MISSION
We provide innovative and high impact solutions that enhance national productivity and competitiveness.
BNPC will continuously scan the environment in pursuit of productivity improvement opportunities that 
create a strategic playground for innovation. The goal is for Botswana to serve as a benchmark for 
national productivity improvement and BNPC to provide similar solutions globally.  

STRATEGIC INTENT
To drive productivity in national prioritized sectors through Innovation, Technology, and Indigenous 
Knowledge by 2023.

By 2023, BNPC is committed to have improved national productivity across all sectors with particular focus 
on national prioritized sectors – Mining, Agriculture, Tourism, Diamond Beneficiation and Financial Services.  
The Centre will conduct extensive research and application of indigenous knowledge to yield innovative 
solutions that address prevailing productivity and competitiveness challenges.  

We continuously exhibit teamwork and build each other up as we create value for 
Batswana. This goes beyond the confines of the Centre; therefore, we extend the 
same to all our stakeholders and partners as we form part of the national economic 
transformation value chain.  

At BNPC, every challenge is an opportunity to create human centred solutions 
through the use of indigenous knowledge and technology. We embrace our rich 
Botswana culture and intend to leverage and infuse its uniqueness into all that we do 
– creating a distinct BNPC mark.  

Innovation

We are zealous about creating value for Batswana, as we deliver our mission with 
pride and purpose. We passionately inspire and equip others to constantly strive 
towards meaningful economic and societal contribution.

Passion

We thrive under pressure and in uncomfortable circumstances with agility. We create 
opportunities where there appears to be none and remain resilient in the process.  

Agility

Our posture is rooted in doing what is right at all times. Each member of our team 
reflects resolute integrity by displaying transparency and accountability in all internal 
and external engagements.

Integrity

QUALITY POLICY STATEMENT
We commit to providing impactful transformational services in productivity and quality improvement to 
meet expectations of all interested parties. This will be achieved by setting objectives against which the 
Centre will measure, manage, and communicate progress, and continually improve the Quality 
Management System to ensure compliance with all applicable requirements of ISO 9001:2015.

SLOGAN

0008

ISO 9001
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The Botswana National Productivity 
Centre (BNPC/The Centre) is a 
parastatal organisation established 
through an Act of Parliament in 1993. 
The statutory mandate of the Centre 
is to enhance the national level of 
productivity consciousness, as an 
advocacy function, and to enable 
individuals and organisations, 
through training and consulting, to 
be productive. This is expected to 
enable both Botswana as a country, 
and her institutions to be globally 
competitive. 

The Centre has a tripartite Board, 
which comprises representatives 
of core stakeholders, which are
government, employers, and workers’ 
organisations.

OUR MANDATE

■ Stimulate and generate 

productivity consciousness in 
Botswana.

■ Promote increased productivity 
in all sectors of the economy.

■ Improve and develop standards 
of management in all aspects 
and at all levels.

■ Promote good labour 
management relations.

■ Foster equitable productivity gain 
sharing between management, 
workers, and consumers.

■ Establish links between the Centre 
and other productivity institutions, 
both in Africa and elsewhere.

■ Assist organisations in identifying 
areas where there is a deficiency 
in skills or where performance can 
be improved and give advice on 
how to deal with these.

BNPC OVERVIEW
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1993-99

BNPC Act - 1993

Productivity and Quality (P&Q) Awareness

Productivity Awareness (17%)

1999-2005

Productivity and Quality (P&Q) Promotion

Culture of Excellence

Productivity Awareness (42%)

2005-2011

ISO9001-2008 Quality Management Systems (QMS)

District Productivity Improvement Forums (DPIFs)

PMS Installation in Local Authorities

Productivity Statistics Report

Partnership With World Economic Forum (WEF)

Productivity Awareness (89%)

2011 - 2017

 National Service Excellence Framework (NASEF)

 Smart Work Ethic Promotion

 ISO 9001:2015 Quality Management Systems (QMS)

 Productivity Statistics Report

 Productivity Tools and Techniques
2017 - 2020

Training and Consultancy

National Work Ethic Investigation Study

National Service Excellence Framework (NASEF) 

Small and mid-size enterprises (SMEs) Business 
Turnaround Support

Productivity Tools and Techniques

THE BNPC 
JOURNEY – 
SOME HIGHLIGHT 
ACHIEVEMENTS
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■ Driving the productivity agenda in BNPC’s 
formative years through visionary leadership 
(Awareness of productivity rose from 14% to 89%)

■ Partnership with Export Development Programme

■ Partnership with the Tourism Industry to improve 
industry customer service

■ Provision of National Productivity Statistics

■ Provision of quality and relevant training 
programmes to the public sector

■ Socialization of public sector performance and 
productivity between 1993 and 2005

■ Playing an instrumental role by providing 
advisory services in influencing labour policy (e.g. 
Occupational Health in the Workplace);

■ Local benchmark institution on issues of quality 
management 

■ Continuous contribution to the World Economic 
Forum Global Competitiveness Reports

■ Partnership with International Institute for 
Management Development 

THE BNPC 
JOURNEY – 
SOME HIGHLIGHT 
ACHIEVEMENTS
(Continued)

3



On behalf of the Board of Directors, it gives me 
great honour and pleasure to present to you the 
Botswana National Productivity Centre (“BNPC” 
or “the Centre”) Annual Report for the 2020/21 
Financial Year that ended on 31st March 2021 (“FY 
2020/21”).  

The annual report provides a great opportunity 
to pause and reflect on the just ended year, the 
achievements and the challenges experienced.  It 
is also a most opportune time to look ahead at the 
many challenges that the Centre must still overcome 
to make an impactful difference in the various 
sectors of the economy and, most importantly, in 
the lives of the many Batswana, through improved 
work ethic, enhanced national productivity and 
competitiveness and the eventual resultant creation 
of the much needed jobs and wealth.

Chairman’s 
Statement 

Nelson Letshwene
Board Chairman
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Our current term, as a Board, ended on the 31st 
March, 2021.  Whilst some of the current Board 
Members have retired from the Board, some 
of the Board member’s tenure continues, to 
ensure continuity.  As we reflect back on the 
previous year, there are many achievements 
for the Centre to be proud of and celebrate.  
The BNPC transformation has begun in earnest.  
The newly appointed Board of Directors shall 
lead BNPC into the future.  The Centre’s going 
concern and ability to deliver on its mandate 
rests solely on its being adequately resourced 
for this transformation journey. 

Productivity in the Midst of the COVID-19 
Pandemic

The COVID-19 pandemic, which struck 
the world in the last quarter of FY-2019/20, 
continued to ravage the Global economies 
well into the FY-2020-21.  The entire global 
economy has virtually fallen prey to its 
debilitating effects.  The virus has not only 
claimed human lives; it has put the entire 
economic system of globalisation to the most 
severe stress test yet encountered.  Prudence, 
resilience, innovation, and risk management 
has helped us steer through the crisis.  We are 
not, by any means, out of the woods yet.  

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, and 
consistent with the Centre’s transformation 
agenda, the Centre, at the peak of 
the COVID-19 Pandemic lockdowns, 

commissioned a Work From Anywhere (WFA) 
programme, in partnership with a local 
consultancy firm.  Under the program, an 
organisation’s operating environment (ICT 
Infrastructure; Organisational Policies and 
Processes and a Culture of Outcome Focused 
Performance Management) are reviewed for 
compliance to remote working prerequisites; 
and improvement recommendations made, 
for implementation.

The WFA Programme is already being rolled 
out at BNPC and various clients across the 
Public and Private sectors. 

Enhancing Corporate Governance

With a view to addressing the urgent and 
growing demand from stakeholders, policy 
makers and regulators, for a reporting system 
that delivers consistent, reliable, adaptable 
and assure-able information relevant to 
enterprise value creation, sustainable 
development, and evolving stakeholder 
expectations, the Centre continues to work 
towards improving its corporate governance 
environment as well as improved reporting; 
ultimately complying with globally recognised 
standards for sustainability reporting, within 
the transformation strategy planning period. 

In 2019, the Botswana Accountancy Oversight 
Authority (BAOA) carried out an independent 
assessment of BNPC’s financial statements 
and corporate governance environment.  

"As we reflect back on the previous year, there are many achievements for the 
Centre to be proud of and celebrate.  The BNPC transformation has begun in 
earnest.  The newly appointed Board of Directors shall lead BNPC into the future."
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This culminated in a report and agreed action 
plan, towards attendance of the audit findings.  
As at the date of release of the BAOA Report 
(June, 2019), there were nine (9) and twenty-
one (21) findings on Financial Statements 
and Corporate Governance respectively.  All 
the Financial Statements findings have been 
closed.  Of the 21 Corporate Governance 
findings, BNPC sought exemption from the 
application of five (5) findings, as these 
contradict the provisions of the BNPC Act. 
Twelve (12) have been addressed, with four (4) 
currently being progressed.

Key Achievements include:

Quality Assurance Improvement Program 
(QAIP) of the Internal Audit Function -  
The Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA), require 
Internal Audit functions to develop and 
maintain a QAIP, which includes a periodic 
independent quality assessment of Internal 
Audit at least once every 5 years.  BNPC 
has undertaken this process for its internal 
audit function during FY-2020-21. The quality 
assessment is a comprehensive review that 
examined the Internal Audit function for: 

■ Conformance with mandatory internal 
auditing requirements, including the 
Standards. 

■ Whether Audit Committee and 
management expectations of Internal 
Audit are being met. 

■ Opportunities for improvement.

An action plan is in place towards implementing 
the recommendations from the assessment 
audit.

Regular Board Assessment -       
Annual board performance evaluations are now 

commonplace for both for-profit and non-profit 
organizations, with specific board evaluation 
recommendations forming a key component 
in nearly every major corporate governance 
standard, review, or report internationally.  
BNPC is no exception to this best practice trend.  
To this end the Centre has been conducting 
annual board assessments since 2019. 

The work-in-progress four areas are:

Ethics Framework -     
Currently, the Centre’s approach to Ethics 
Management is fragmented i.e., raised in 
various instruments such as Conditions of 
Service, Shareholder Compact, Board and 
Committee Charters, Procurement Procedures 
and Guidelines etc.  The Board is responsible for 
setting the standard of ethical behaviour that is 
expected of Board members, managers, and 
employees of the Centre.  In order to effectively 
do this, it is important to have a Code of 
Conduct in place.  This way, the Centre’s 
decisions will consistently comply with the legal 
requirements, the company’s core values and 
the legitimate expectations of the stakeholders.  
An Ethics Management framework (Code of 
Conduct) shall be developed to underpin the 
development of the various instruments, as well 
as guide the conduct of all the persons working 
for and with the company.

Evaluating the Finance Function -  
An effective finance function is integral to an 
organization’s long-term success.  Therefore, 
ensuring a fit-for-purpose finance function that 
meets the needs of the Centre, is crucially 
important.  To meet the future needs of business 
and public sector organizations, finance 
functions must transform from technical 
support roles into business partners that enable 
long-term, sustainable organizational success.  

Botswana National Productivity Centre Annual Report6



Achieving such transformation requires buy-
in from the Board and Executive Director, 
who must understand not only how well the 
finance function currently meets the needs 
of the organization but also where to invest 
in developing finance function capability.  
BNPC shall thus endeavour to undertake a 
comprehensive review of the finance function 
during the FY-2021-22.

Risk Management Assurance - 
Risk management is no longer simply a 
business and operational responsibility 
of management. It has also become a 
governance issue that is squarely within the 
oversight responsibility of the board.   One of 
the key requirements of the board is to gain 
assurance that risk management processes 
are working effectively and that key risks are 
being managed to an acceptable level.  The 
Centre’s Internal Audit function coordinates 
collation of the enterprise-wide risk logs and 
associated activities.  The Centre is working 
towards ensuring that, Internal Audit’s 
involvement in the Centre’s risk management 
process, does not compromise its primary role 
of providing objective assurance to the board 
on the effectiveness of risk management.

Compliance Framework -   
The Centre’s compliance with various legal and 
policy requirements reside within the different 
instruments, with no single specific reference 
document to guide the compliance.   As a 
public entity, the Centre has a responsibility 
to identify and comply with all relevant 
compliance obligations.  The Centre shall 
take these obligations into account when 
establishing, developing, implementing, 
evaluating, maintaining, and improving its 
compliance management framework.  The 
compliance management framework, to be 

developed during FY-2021-22, shall reflect the 
organisation’s values, objectives, strategy, and 
compliance risks.

We Aim to be a Good Corporate Citizen

The changing context within which companies 
operate, shaped by environmental and 
globalization forces, affects the way that the role 
of business is perceived.  BNPC acknowledges 
the importance of CSR in doing business.  The 
Centre is committed to behaving ethically and 
contributing to economic development of the 
country, while improving the quality of life of 
its workforce and their families, as well as the 
local community and society at large.  

During the financial year under review, the 
Centre commenced the rollout of its CSR 
programme.  This was achieved through the 
donation of COVID-19 PPE, Sanitizers as well as 
stationary, to Mogoditshane Senior Secondary 
School, to help avert the problem of sharing 
which perpetuates the spread of COVID-19.  
Also, in March 2021, the Centre developed 
the strategy for Botswana Organisation for 
Rare Diseases (BORDIS), a non-governmental 
organisation (NGO), to help it achieve its 
operational efficiency and fulfil the needs and 
expectations of its stakeholders.   The strategy 
development was done for free.  The CSR 
programme shall continue into the coming 
years, as part of our endeavour to remain a 
good corporate citizen.

Our Financial Performance 

The Centre occupies land and buildings, 
whose title has, and continues to be in favour 
of the Government of Botswana.  The property 
has previously been recognised in the Centre’s 
financial statements of prior years.  In the 
previous year (FY-2019-20) it was recognised at 
a carrying value of P52 300 000.  This was on the 
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assumption that the Government shall pass on 
the title to BNPC.  However, in the current year 
(December, 2020), the Centre entered into a 
50-year agreement with the Government for 
lease of the property.  The financial statements 
of the Centre have since been restated to 
reflect this development.  

The Centre continues to operate with a less 
than optimal financial position.  The Centre’s 
overreliance on Government subventions 
means that any adverse impact on the 
Government’s revenues is likely to impact the 
subvention received from the Government.  
Consequently, the huge decline in Government 
revenues resulting from the COVID-19 
pandemic have also resulted in a decline of 
10% on the prior year’s subventions, putting a 
severe strain on the Centre’s finances.  

With the restated financials, the Centre 
recorded a deficit of P5.04 million for the year 
ended 31st March, 2021, with a decreased 
accumulated surplus of P13.64 million at the 
end of the financial year, from P18.69 million at 
the beginning of the year.   The decline in the 
financial position is mainly attributable to low 
performance in self-liquidating interventions as a 
result of low uptake of our products and services 
as well as human capital constraints, due to the 
ongoing restructuring process, compounded by 
the COVID-19 pandemic restrictions.

The BNPC Transforming Journey

The Centre was established with the overall 
objective of  “promoting increased productivity, 
improving standards of management and 
labour-management relations, and generally 
stimulating productivity consciousness in 
Botswana.”  BNPC remains committed to 
delivering on this legislative mandate, as 
outlined in the BNPC Act (1993).

Whilst the Centre’s mandate, per the BNPC 
Act, is primarily focused on improvement of 
labour management relations; productivity 
consciousness and improvement, evolving 
national and global trends as well as the 
national development agenda dictates a need 
for the Centre to rethink its current strategy 
and business model, towards becoming a role 
model productivity centre and government’s 
best advisor on matters of Work-Ethic, 
Productivity and Competitiveness.  In the last 
reporting period (FY-2019/20), we committed 
to undertake a comprehensive review of our 
operating environment; stakeholder analysis 
and needs and the current strategy towards the 
development of a most relevant and focused 
transformational strategy; ensuring improved 
productivity; competitiveness and stakeholder 
value across all sectors of the economy.  

I am happy to confirm that we have since 
reviewed our strategy and developed 
a comprehensive 3-year transformation 
strategy, under the theme “Repositioning 
BNPC as the Apex National Productivity and 
Competitiveness Centre of Excellence – A 
New Dawn”.  The transformation strategy 
aims to achieve improved productivity, 
competitiveness, and stakeholder value 
across all sectors of the economy.  Internally, 
the transformation shall ensure BNPC is well 
poised to lead the national productivity and 
competitiveness agenda.

In leading the productivity agenda, the 
Centre shall re-align its business model such 
that it is able to deliver its mandate across 
the differing impact levels – national, sectoral, 
organisational, and individual.  In addition, 
this will enable BNPC the opportunity to 
clearly define its role and advocate for the 
renewal of its mandate to be reflective of an 
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innovative modern day National Productivity 
Organisation.  The strategy will define the 
national productivity framework and be in line 
with national productivity blueprints (policies 
and strategies).  Furthermore, our interventions 
to lead a productivity driven growth and 
development agenda are motivated by our 
desire to improve the overall productivity and 
competitiveness of our economy.  It is also 
critical, for BNPC, to instil an equally missing 
urgency of appreciating the importance of 
productivity in every sector of the economy. 

It is time for change.  It is time for impact.

As part of the BNPC transformation journey, the 
much-delayed organisational restructuring 
exercise got the much need traction 
towards conclusion.  The centre concluded 
the development of the Go-To structure; 
we approved the migration plan and the 
necessary supporting polices and guidelines.

The continuous development of employees 
and their welfare remains fundamental to the 
success of any organisation.  We have not 
fared very well in this regard, in the just ended 
year.  With organisational restructuring and a 
refocused transformational strategy in place, 
it is most important for all employees of BNPC 
to be appropriately skilled and equipped 
to handle the ever-changing world of work.  
As part of our HR strategy, going forward, 
we will be putting in place a programme to 
ensure that individual development plans are 
implemented.

Words of appreciation

I would like to extend my gratitude to our 
management team, staff, and strategic 
partners for their commitment and contribution 
towards BNPC. Further, I would like to convey 
my appreciation for my fellow directors for 
providing guidance amidst the tough operating 
environment.  Last but not least, I would like to 
extend my gratitude to our shareholder, the 
Minister of Employment, Labour Productivity 
and Skills Development and the Ministry, for 
their continued and unwavering support. 

We will continue to work hard in building a 
more impactful BNPC for our customers, while 
enhancing our shareholders' value.

Nelson Letshwene
Board Chairman

“Culture does not change 

because we desire to change 

it. Culture changes when the 

organization is transformed – 

the culture reflects the realities 

of people working together 

everyday.” 

- Frances Hesselbein
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Executive 
Director’s 
Statement 

Christopher Mmusi Diswai
Executive Director

1.0 Introduction

It is indeed an honour and a privilege to present 
to you, the 2020/21 Annual Report for the 
Botswana National Productivity Centre (BNPC). 
The Report provides a summary of the Centre’s 
operations, including achievements and 
challenges encountered during the financial 
year 2020-2021 reporting period. 

The 2020/21 annual report is presented on the 
backdrop of a most debilitating pandemic, 
the Covid-19 pandemic, the consequences 
of which have, and continue to have, a major 
impact on global and national economies.  Our 
operations here at BNPC have also be adversely 
impacted by this pandemic, the end of which is 
not immediately in sight.
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The 2020/21 BNPC Annual Report is published 
consistent with the requirements of Section – 
17 (1) of the Botswana National Productivity 
Centre’s Act (1993).  The report provides a 
summary of the Centre’s operations, audited 
financial statements and the external 
auditor’s report for the financial year ending 
31st March 2021.  The report also provides a 
summary outlook for the future.

2.0 Our Transformation Journey

In December 2020, following a mid-term 
review, the Board approved the BNPC 
Transformation Strategy 2020-2023, themed 
“Repositioning BNPC as the APEX National 
Productivity and Competitiveness Centre 
– A New Dawn”. The strategy defines the 
BNPC roadmap towards becoming a 
national productivity and competitiveness 
centre of excellence.

Whilst the Centre’s mandate, per the BNPC 
Act, is primarily focused on improvement of 
labour-management relations; productivity 
consciousness and improvement, the 
national transformation agenda dictates 
an urgent need for the Centre to also focus 
on the following:

1. Lead and champion improvement of 
the national productivity and global 
competitiveness rankings. 

2. Contribute towards the national ease 

of doing business reforms.

3. Deliver positively impactful productivity 
improvement products and services 
solutions, across all sectors of the 
economy; and

4. Embrace and be at the forefront of 
driving and leveraging the Fourth 
Industrial Revolution (4IR) to drive the 
Centre’s and Nation’s productivity and 
competitiveness indicators.

BNPC has developed a comprehensive 
transformation strategy, which aims for 
improved productivity, competitiveness, and 
stakeholder value across all sectors of the 
economy.  The transformation shall ensure 
BNPC is well poised to lead the national 
productivity and competitiveness agenda.

In leading the productivity agenda, the 
Centre shall re-align its business model such 
that it is able to deliver its mandate across the 
differing impact levels – national, sectoral, 
organisational, and individual.  In addition, 
this will enable BNPC the opportunity to 
clearly define its role and advocate for 
the renewal of its mandate to be reflective 
of an innovative modern day National 
Productivity Organisation.  The strategy will 
define the national productivity framework 
and be in line with national productivity 
blueprints (policies and strategies).

The report provides a summary of the Centre’s operations, audited financial 
statements and the external auditor’s report for the financial year ending 31st March 
2021.  The report also provides a summary outlook for the future.
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3.0 National Productivity and        
       Competitiveness

More than ever before productivity growth 
remains key to accelerating competitiveness, 
creating employment opportunities, and for 
achieving sustainable economic growth. 
With growth in national productivity, an 
economy is able to produce and consume, 
increasingly more goods and services. 

BNPC’s estimates indicates that total 
factor productivity (TFP) has experienced a 
general decline. Growth was -6.04% in 2020. 
The negative growth rate is a reflection of 
the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic 
on both Botswana’s productivity and 
competitiveness’ position. Unfortunately, 
the national imposed control measures 
such as the lockdowns, curfews and social 
distancing measures have had negative 
impact on the overall efficiency in the 
production process. Operation costs have 
also increased as businesses had to procure 
several health and safety (SHE) items in 
compliance with the Covid- 19 protocols.

Labour and Capital Productivity estimates 
for 2020 did not fare well either with the 
growth estimates for these indicators being 
-6.95% and -8.75% respectively.

BNPC responded to the productivity 
challenges brought about by the pandemic 
by intensifying its research efforts. This 
was deemed highly necessary as it is 
only if the situation on the ground is fully 
comprehended that we can adequately 
design solutions that would mitigate the 
prevailing constrains and challenges. 

Through rigorous research and collaboration 
with industry experts, BNPC developed a 

comprehensive Working From Anywhere 
(WFA) framework, localized to Botswana’s 
context, to assist individuals, businesses, 
organisations, government departments 
and ministries to adopt, transition and adapt 
an effective WFA arrangement that would 
minimise productivity losses. The framework 
recognises that enhancing productivity 
while working from anywhere requires much 
more than a computer with connectivity.  It 
is on this basis that, the BNPC WFA framework 
hinges on eight (8) dimensions that must be 
balanced and adequately addressed to 
make working from anywhere an effective 
and productive process. 

The BNPC WFA dimensions are:

1) Digital Economy (Digital Environment,   
    Access, Internet Access etc), 

2) Goals and Outputs (PMS), 

3) Policies (Human Resources, ICT and PMS), 

4) Processes, 

5) Teamwork, 

6) Technology (Hardware, Software etc.), 

7) Culture and; 

8) Leadership. 

When working with an institution, BNPC 
conducts a situational assessment on each 
dimension to establish the institution’s 
strengths and weaknesses, as a first step. 
Following that, a WFA programme and 
transition roadmap is developed.

BNPC is currently undertaking extensive 
research on the manufacturing sector in 
order to identify and address sector specific 
challenges, as well as establish productivity 
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constrains that have arisen due to the 
pandemic.  Through information acquired 
from this undertaking, the Centre will 
develop innovative solutions and provide 
evidence-based policy recommendations 
that will close prevailing productivity gaps. 
The manufacturing sector was specifically 
selected as the first sector of analysis due to 
its low realised labour productivity growth 
rates over the past decade. This sector’s 
selection is also based on its huge potential 
to generate high levels of employment 
which would lead to prosperity for all, 
diversify the economy and contribute 
significantly towards the envisioned export 
led growth. Under this study, BNPC will be 
undertaking a survey of 300 manufacturing 
companies in order to appreciate their 
productivity constrains and enhancers.  The 
manufacturing sector is a most pivotal sector 
in the value creation agenda, as envisioned 
by the national RESET agenda.

The Botswana National Productivity Centre 
(BNPC) is the local partner of the World 
Economic Forum (WEF). The Centre collects 
and collates the national data for the WEF 
Global Competitiveness Report and the 
Travel and Tourism Competitiveness Report. 
The Centre also undertakes studies on 
national productivity and competitiveness.

In 2020, BNPC partnered with the Institute 
of Management Development (IMD) to 
undertake an in-depth assessment of the 
local economy in order to fully understand 
Botswana’s competitiveness landscape.  
Though similar to the World Economic 
Forum’s (WEF) Global Competitiveness 
Reports (GCR), the IMD assessment provides 
a more in-depth analysis which could help 
guide focused actions aimed at improving 

Botswana’s overall competitiveness position. 
With the global economic turmoil brought 
about by the pandemic, this assessment is 
extremely vital for improving Botswana’s 
competitiveness as one of the fastest ways 
to spearhead economic growth. BNPC in 
collaboration with the Ministry of Employment 
Labour Productivity and Skills Development 
(MELSD) is currently using the results and 
findings from the IMD assessment to engage 
the relevant stakeholders. A competitiveness 
action plan has been developed to guide 
the process. Going forward, BNPC will be 
using such inputs to guide the development 
of productivity and competitiveness policy 
briefs, to better inform the national policy 
direction. BNPC will also be producing 
competitiveness policy briefs to provide the 
necessary policy direction. 

In order to address issues of mindset change 
in the workplace, which is a priority area 
outlined in the RESET Agenda, BNPC is 
designing a program named Organisational 
Behaviour. The development and design 
of this program is mainly guided by the 
Work Ethics Investigation Study findings 
and recommendations, conducted by 
BNPC in 2018/19. The program will address 
the following challenges (i) harnessing of 
cultural ethos, (ii) low worker morale, (iii) 
performance management, (iv) employee 
engagement, (v) discipline and enforcement 
of codes of conduct, (vi) leadership quality 
and (vii) HR policies, amongst other things. 
The Organisational Behaviour program is 
expected to be available for public offering 
from April 2022.

In efforts to advance Botswana’s knowledge-
based economy, BNPC has over the years 
been publishing various productivity and 
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competitiveness reports. Information from 
these reports is highly independent of each 
other, (there is minimal assimilation between 
the reports) and over the years data may 
be lost if it is not well documented. BNPC 
is as such, developing a productivity and 
competitiveness data dashboard that 
visually tracks, analyses, and displays key 
indicators, metrics, and key data points to 
monitor growth of key variables. 

The dashboard, which is currently in static 
hardcopy format, shall eventually be 
digitised and automated for online access 
via the BNPC digital platforms, by key 
stakeholders.  This shall be developed during 
the FY-2021/22.

4.0  Looking Ahead

The greatest challenge facing the Centre 
continues to be financial viability and 
sustainability. The Government subventions 
towards supporting the Centre’s operations, 
have been on a steady decline over the 
past few years, to near unsustainable levels. 
The Centre’s internally generated revenues 
have similarly been declining. The situation 
has further been aggravated by the 
COVID-19 pandemic induced economic 
meltdown, which has resulted in further 
reductions in the Government’s funding, for 
the Centre by a further 5% to P32, 787, 660. 

Looking ahead, the Centre shall continue 
to put major emphasis on repositioning for 
bigger and better viability and sustainability. 
Issues relating to the organisational brand 
and identity, services, and programmes; 
underpinned by a motivated and productive 
workforce, innovation and cutting-edge 
technology shall define our transformation 

journey. We will adopt new ways of doing 
things; taking advantage of challenges 
and opportunities brought about by the 
advent of the Covid-19 pandemic, such 
as digitalisation and manufacturing value 
chain development.

BNPC shall continue on its transformation 
journey, centred around a focus on 
improving our people environment given 
the disturbing picture, as portrayed by the 
recently completed engagement survey.  
A relentless focus on delivering on our 
internal performance improvement and 
productivity mandate; being ready and 
prepared to challenge ourselves and take 
bold decisions, we will retain and further 
enhance our position as the government’s 
best adviser on matters of national 
productivity and competitiveness.

It is pivotal for us to rethink; review and 
design how our employees, workplace, 
and technology fit together in order to 
address the changing customer needs 
and expectations.  The organisational 
restructuring underpinned our strategic 
delivery during the 2020/21 financial year.
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country’s accelerated economic growth agenda. He holds 
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Graduate Diploma (Law) University of Namibia, Post Graduate 
Diploma(Business Administration) Milpark, Business School/ Thames 
Valley University, London,UK.
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An independent member of the Board who is an Accountant by 
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positions at the Debswana Diamond Company including Finance 
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and Group Management Accountant. She holds a Bachelor 
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of Management Accountants (CIMA), Associate Chartered 
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Accountant (ACPA) (BIA), Associate Chartered Accountant 
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He is the Chief Executive Officer at the Botswana Examination 
Council. Prior to that he was the Director Research and Policy 
Development at Botswana Examinations Council (BEC). 
His responsibilities include guiding and directing research 
programmes that inform BEC practice and policy decisions. Dr 
Thobega’s past immediate employer was the then Botswana 
College of Agriculture (1997 - 2010) where his post was Senior 
Lecturer. He holds a PhD. (Agricultural Education and Studies), 
Iowa State University of Science and Technology, USA, MSc. 
(Agricultural Education and Studies), University of Science and 
Technology, Iowa State, BSc – Agriculture, Botswana College of 
Agriculture, University of Botswana, Post Graduate Diploma in 
Education, University of Botswana.
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He is responsible, among others, to lead, direct and provide overall 
strategic direction to the Centre. Christopher has over 26 years of 
experience, primarily in ICT sector. He is highly experienced in Strategic 
Planning and Management, Programme and Project Management, 
Business Transformation, Change Management and Operations and 
Risk Management. He previously worked for Camusat Botswana, 
Lacell in Burundi and Orange Botswana in various sections. He also 
previously worked as a General Manager for Strategy for Botswana 
Telecommunications Corporation (BTC). At BTC, he also held dual roles 
of General Manager Strategy and Chief Operations Officer,responsible 
for, amongst other duties, Operations and Risk Management. He 
holds a Bachelor of Engineering (Bangalore University, India), Diploma 
in Management (Henly Management College, UK) Masters in 
Business Administration (Henly Management College, UK) Advanced 
Management & Leadership Programme (Oxford University, UK).
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Position: Executive Director

He is Director Commercial Enterprises at Botswana Bureau of Standards 
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Acting Director of Quality Assurance and Manager, Laboratory Services 
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(Digital Electronics) University Wales College of Cardiff, U.K, B.Eng. 
(Electrical and Electronics) Birla Institute of Technology, India.
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Employed by the Botswana Vaccine Institute (BVI) as a Biosecurity, 
Health, Safety and the Environment (HSE). Prior to joining BVI, Butale 
was an Assistant Manager at Mulamulele Construction Company.

He possesses the following qualifications; BSC Applied Mathematics 
(North West University, a Diploma in Human Rights (University of North 
West) and a Diploma in Procurement and Supply (CIPS).

Mr Thusang Butale

Position: Chairperson of the Board Human Resources Committee
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Mr Tsheko is the Deputy Director at the Ministry of Investment, 
Trade, and Industry Department for Co-operative 
Development.  He is responsible for the overall Management 
of the department which includes: implementation of the 
Cooperative Transformation Strategy; business advisory services 
to Cooperatives; Auditing and inspection of Cooperatives; 
Human Resources Management;  building effective and 
strategic cooperative partnerships; resource optimization and 
mobilization; and provision of quality service. He also worked 
at the Directorate of Public Service Management (DPSM) 
as the Assistant Director I (July 2008 – July 2011).  His role was 
overall planning, coordination and direction of the activities 
of the Employment Relations Business Unit, which included 
Implementation of the Public Service Act, 2008 among others. 
He possesses a Certificate in Corporative Administration, 
Diploma in Business Management and Accounting, Diploma 
in Human Resources Management, Advanced Labour Law 
(SAQA Skills Level 8/9: Honours in Labour Law), a Post Graduate 
Diploma in Law (Conciliation and Arbitration) and currently 
pursuing an LLM in Labour Law.

Dr Mmusi is the Founder & CEO of Consortium of Leadership 
& Gender Experts (PTY) Ltd CLGE Gaborone Botswana from 
2014 to date.  She is also the Head, Graduate Studies at 
the Gaborone University College of Law and Professional 
Studies since 2015.  Dr Mmusi is the Director of Partner 
Agency (Consortium of Leadership & Gender Experts) to 
MBJ Health & Travel PvT. Ltd – IndMedicare from 2020 to 
date. In 2010 to 2014, Dr Mmusi was with the United Nations 
Development Programme (UNDP), Gaborone Botswana as 
the Health & Gender Specialist. She holds a Ph.D. (Sociology) 
Atlantic International University, USA; Certificate International 
Community Health University of Oslo, Norway; MSc Wits 
University, South Africa; Bachelor’s Degree,Nursing Education 
University of Botswana, Botswana.

Dr Tinaye Mmusi

Position: Member of the Board Strategy Committee

Mr Boniface Tsheko

Position: Member of the Board Human Resources Committee
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Mr Jacob Momene

Position: Member of the Board Audit, Finance and Risk Committee

Mr Momene worked at the Ministry of Employment, Labour 
Productivity and Skills Development as the Deputy Permanent 
Secretary. In July 2019 he was appointed the Deputy Permanent 
Secretary - Corporate Services at the Ministry of Finance & Economic 
development.  He Interprets corporate services policy and advises 
the Permanent Secretary on Policy issues; translates the ministry 
vision into clear, compelling, and challenging programmes. In July 
2009 Mr Momene was with Attorney General Chambers as the Senior 
Manager - Corporate Services, Setting and managing adherence 
to performance standards, Alignment, and implementation of the 
Divisional Strategic Plan. He has a Master of Education (Professional 
Development) Master’s Degree: - Northern College, Scotland, U.K., 
Bachelor of Education (Design & Technology). Bachelor’s Degree: 
- College of St Mark and St John, England, U.K. and a Diploma: - 
Botswana Polytechnic.

She is Manager, Human Resources Services at Botswana Unified 
Revenue Services (BURS). Prior to joining BURS, Ms Siamisang worked 
at Directorate of Public Service Management (DPSM), where 
she was, among others, responsible for initiating and facilitating 
formulation of terms and conditions of the employment for the 
Public Service relating to compensation and benefit. She holds a 
Master of Arts (Human Resources Management) Hawaii Pacific 
University, Hawaii, U.S.A, Bachelor of Arts (Public Administration and 
Accounting) University of Botswana.

Ms Grace Siamisang

Position: Member of the Board Human Resources Committee
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OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

 

 

2020-2021: Organisational 
Performance Highlights

The report highlights the Centre’s 
performance against strategic objectives 
and associated initiatives as set out 
in the Centre’s Strategic Plan (2018-
2023).  The financial year 2020-2021 was 
characterised by a number of activities 
which saw the Centre continuing to make 
significant improvements in national 
productivity improvement advocacy 
campaigns; research undertakings; and 
commencement of migration to the new 
organisational restructure.  However, 
some projects did not commence as 
envisaged due to resource constraints, 
exacerbated by the onset of the Corona 
Virus (Covid-19) induced pandemic.

In just over a year, the COVID-19 pandemic 
has had such a devastating economic, 
social and health impact across the globe.  
Millions of lives have been lost, and the 
end to this crisis remains uncertain.  The 
necessary resultant containment measures 
adopted across the globe have had 
severe negative consequences on the 
global, regional, and domestic economies.  
Botswana has not been spared.

The year under review saw a generally 
low uptake of BNPC’s products and 
services, as the nation went into 
lockdowns and curfews, in response to 
the pandemic.  This has inevitably led to 
missed operational targets.

The pandemic also brought with it, 
opportunities for the Centre to review its 
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operations with a view to ensuring continued 
operations in the midst of the pandemic.  A 
comprehensive review of the employee 
working environment (Employee Engagement 
Survey) was undertaken early in 2020, with a 
view to establishing a baseline of the people 
environment and working conditions within the 
Centre.

Human Capital Development

The Board, in March, 2020, approved a new 
organisational structure, to best deliver on 
the Centre’s mandate; emerging global and 
national productivity and competitiveness 
issues as well as the strategic vision of the 
Centre. The conditions for transition to the 
new organisational structure being conclusion 
of various associated policies, affordability, 
sustainability, and alignment with budget 
availability.  Such policies include a review of 
the Centre’s job profiles; pay and remuneration 
policies; retrenchment policies and migration 

rules to guide the transition to the new structure.

The current organisational  structure, implemented 
in 2008/9, is now outdated and is not consistent 
with modern organisational trends. It is not well 
positioned to transform BNPC into a world class; 
agile productivity centre of excellence along the 
lines of Malaysia, Singapore and Japan, which 
were instrumental in the formation and initial 
shaping of the BNPC construct. 

The proposed new organisational structure aims 
to embrace the above highlighted needs and 
future requirements, which were not apparent, 
back in 1993, at BNPC’s formation.  The Centre has 
commenced migration to the new structure, as 
part of the organisational transformation journey, 
with expected conclusion of the migration 
process by March, 2022.

Working From Anywhere (WFA)

■ The Working From Anywhere Programme is 
already being rolled out at BNPC. 
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■ The Programme has been packaged to 
be deployed across various Government 
Ministries and Private Sector entities. 

The Centre occasionally undertakes operational 
review exercises, with a view to ensuring that its 
human resources, processes, structures, systems 
and adopted technologies are optimally 
aligned and geared to ensure they support 
its current and future vision and supporting 
strategies.

Reducing face-to-face contact is a necessary 
and important action in mitigating the impact 
of COVID-19, or such similar illnesses.  In this 
new environment, employers have to be able 
to adapt and make contingency plans to 
respond to new measures as they arise.  Many 
companies are exploring WFA as a temporary 
or alternative working arrangement.  BNPC 
aims to make this a long-term available work 
option, as a way of enhancing productivity.

BNPC has instituted a WFA programme which 
is intended to support high productivity levels 
for local organisations during work disruptions, 
such as those brought on by COVID-19, and 
as entry point into the digital new world of 
work, the Digital Skills Agenda.  The focus of 
the programme is on reviewing the following 
organisational environments, which are a pre-
requisite to an effective WFA programme:

■ ICT Infrastructure

■ Organisational Policies and Processes

■ A Culture of High Performance (Output 
Focused Performance Management)

■ Leadership in the digital economy

The outcomes from the organisational 
environmental reviews lead to the development 
of a WFA implementation road map.  

WFA and hybrid arrangements are part of the 
new world of work and part of the post COVID 
era world of work.  The WFA Programme has 
been effectively rolled out at BNPC and has 
also been packaged to be deployed across 
various Government Ministries, Agencies and 
Private Sector entities.

Benefits of the Work From Anywhere programme 
are many, and for the Organisation, the 
benefits include: 

■ Reduced office accommodation costs 
and better use of existing premises and 
resources;  

■ Contributing towards the reduction of 
the Nation’s and global Carbon Dioxide 
(CO2 ) emissions, by reducing number of 
employee commuting;  

■ The retention of valued and skilled 
employees for whom the ability to work at 
home is the preferred option and motivation;  

■ Enhanced motivation of staff, who feel that 
they work for a progressive organisation 
that is dynamic, prepared to be flexible and 
which demonstrates trust in its employees;

■ Potentially increased output and quality 
of work, due to fewer distractions, than 
working in an office environment;  

■ Accommodation of the requirements of 
disabled employees or employees with 
temporary or long-term health conditions;

■ Promotion of a positive image as a good 
and progressive employer;  

■ Potential to reduced costs in terms of 
travelling allowances. 

■ Foster a high-performance based culture, 
focused on targets, deliverables, and 
benefit realisation.
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■ Minimise opportunities for infections in the 
workplace, in the event of infectious and 
transmittable contagions.

 

For the employee, the WFA benefits include: 

■ Increased discretion in the management 
of their work and personal time;

■ Increased motivation;  

■ A saving of travel time and costs;  

■ The ability to work with minimal distraction;  

■ Improvements in work-life balance issue;

■ Enhance self-directed delivery based on 
targets and outputs; 

■ Promote and develop self-discipline and 
time management; 

NATIONAL PRODUCTIVITY and 
COMPETITIVENESS

A Focus on Information and Research Services 
Department

Department Objective 

BNPC’s Information and Research Services 
(IRS) Department comprises of the Research 
and Measurement Unit, the Resource Centre, 
and the Editorial Unit.   Collectively, these three 
units are more or less, the custodians of BNPC’s 
productivity and competitiveness information. 
Specifically, the department is charged with 
the collection of data and information on 
productivity and competitiveness, safeguarding 
the Centre’s data, knowledge, and information, 
calculating and compiling productivity statistics, 
conducting research, analysing government 
policies that border on productivity and 
competitiveness, and the dissemination of 

information.  The department made numerous 
strides on this front in the 2020/21 financial year. 

Research Activities 

In collaboration and partnership with the 
World Economic Forum (WEF), BNPC gathered 
information that fed into the 2020 Global 
Competitiveness Report.  Although this report 
did not provide the usual rankings, due to 
challenges of data collection brought about by 
the COVID-19 pandemic, it provided relevant 
recommendations that countries like Botswana 
could implement to spearhead productivity 
and competitiveness given the pandemic.  The 
Global Competitiveness Report was released 
in December 2020 and disseminated, to key 
stakeholders nationally, by BNPC.  

BNPC also engaged the Institute of Management 
Development (IMD) in 2020 to conduct an in-
depth analysis of Botswana’s competitiveness 
position.  This engagement resulted in three 
key reports namely; Botswana in IMD World 
Competitiveness 2020, Botswana’s Talent Report 
2020, and Botswana’s Digital Competitiveness 
Report 2020.  These reports analysed the extent 
to which Botswana fosters an environment in 
which enterprises can generate sustainable 
value.  Going forward, BNPC plans to use the 
findings of these assessments to engage relevant 
stakeholders with the objective of improving 
Botswana’s overall competitiveness.  

Through the IRS Department, BNPC undertakes 
research and analyses policy, with the objective 
of providing advice and guidance on issues of 
productivity and competitiveness.  It is in this 
light, that BNPC collaborated with the Ministry 
of Agriculture and Food Security (MOA) in 
order to undertake a review and evaluation 
of the Integrated Support Program for Arable 
Agriculture Development (ISPAAD) program.  
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The main objectives of the evaluation were 
to assess the performance of the ISPAAD 
programme against its set objectives, with 
focus on the extent to which the programme 
has met its key performance targets. Overall, 
the evaluation and review sought to establish 
ISPAAD’s impact, effectiveness and relevance 
going forward. BNPC’s involvement centred 
around establishing the impact of ISPAAD 
on grain production and grain productivity 
in Botswana.  The study was completed 
in November 2020 and the findings and 
recommendations used to inform the 
redesigned ISPAAD program.

Our Publications

The 2020/21 financial year started with a 
national lockdown as a means to curb the 
spread of the Corona virus responsible for the 
pandemic.  During this period, BNPC’s Research 

and Measurement Unit undertook preliminary 
research on the impact of the COVID-19 
pandemic on productivity and competitiveness.  
This research resulted in five articles, published 
on a weekly basis in a local weekly newspaper, 
advising businesses on strategies to implement in 
order to navigate the new normal and minimise 
losses on productivity.  One of the articles 
featured weekly, provided policy options that 
Botswana could consider during the pandemic.  

In addition to the newspaper articles, BNPC 
also published two Productivity and Quality 
(P&Q) Forum magazines.  These publications 
contain articles written by BNPC consultants 
from various departments.  The purpose of this 
publication is to share non-technical information 
on productivity and competitiveness on a 
regular basis.  The 2020/21 editions of the P&Q 
magazines contained mainly articles of case 
studies on companies that BNPC enrolled on 
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productivity improvement programs such as 
KAIZEN.  

While the P&Q Forum magazine shares non-
technical information on a regular basis, the 
BNPC Insight Journal is a biannual publication, 
targeting academia and policy makers, which 
provides technical and analytical articles on 
Botswana’s productivity and competitiveness.  
The 2020/21 BNPC Insight Journal contained 
four articles in that regard. 

In pursuit to bring together information and 
data produced by several BNPC research 
initiatives and publications, the Centre 
commenced the development of a national 
productivity and competitiveness dashboard 
in 2020.  The dashboard is expected to be a 
one-stop-shop providing a fully functional 
information management tool that visually 
tracks, manipulates, analyses, and displays 
productivity, competitiveness and relevant 
economic data and indicators. Using 
appropriate software, the dashboard will be 
embedded on BNPC’s website allowing users to 
convert raw data into visual figures, charts, and 
tables. While this process started in the 2020/21 
financial year, completion will occur in 2021/22 
where both a hard copy of the dashboard and 
a soft version embedded on BNPC’s website 
will be launched.

National Productivity and 
Competitiveness Dashboard

Botswana’s productivity has a major influence 
on the nation’s real per capita income growth.  
Productivity growth improves current living 
standards as well as the nation’s capacity to 
address future challenges such as an ageing 
population and global economic shocks and 
challenges.  Productivity growth has been 
one of the primary drivers of increasing living 
standards for Batswana.  The more goods and 

services a society can produce with a given set 
of inputs, the greater the material improvements 
in the standard of living of that society.

BNPC  has  introduced a National Productivity 
and Competitiveness Dashboard.  The dashboard 
provides an information sharing platform that 
captures productivity and competitiveness key 
performance indicators (KPIs), on a national 
and sectorial level.

A huge amount of data on national productivity 
and competitiveness performance is being 
gathered across the globe.  Data is often made 
available through international organisations 
and bodies such as the World Economic Forum, 
Institute of Management Development, United 
Nations, the World Bank, and the International 
Labour Organisation, amongst many others.  
While the data are available, they are often 
largely inaccessible to anyone without 
knowledge or experience of data analysis.

This plethora of data contains a story of progress 
against key productivity and competitiveness 
indicators.  However, the story is often hidden 
and buried amongst screes of numbers held 
within tables and spreadsheets.  The National 
Productivity and Competitiveness Dashboard 
seeks to make information on productivity and 
competitiveness performance more accessible 
to a wider audience, particularly focusing on 
Botswana.

Geographic coverage is often a key limitation.  
The national dashboard seeks to provide 
comparability between different nations within 
a particular scale. This requires standardisation 
of measurement, and a single data source.  In 
the first edition of the dashboard, we sought 
indicators that were measured by the same 
organisation for all the countries and regions.  
This means that many high-quality indicators 
were potentially excluded from consideration as 
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they only covered a sub-set of nations or regions.

The national dashboard is a living and evolving 
system. There are additional indicators we hope 
to incorporate and use in the future.  Some 
are not yet measured broadly or in a standard 
way, while others are already available and will 
be included as we work our way through the 
prioritisation process. 

National Productivity and 
Competitiveness Improvement Blueprint

According to the National Development Plan-
11 (NDP-11) Mid-term Review (The Economic 
Recovery and Transformation Plan (ERTP)), 
Botswana’s economy is facing major economic 
challenges, calling for urgent and deep structural 
reforms.  These challenges include a declining 
economic (GDP) growth - over the five years from 
2014 to 2019, annual growth averaged less than 
3%; well below the 6 – 8% target, needed to raise 
real incomes and create sufficient employment 
opportunities.  The economy is further saddled 
with a deteriorating fiscal position, with a long-
term structural decline in fiscal revenues, regular 
budget deficits and the depletion of fiscal and 
external buffers.  These have been worsened by 
the crippling impact of the pandemic.

The economic challenges facing the country 
are primarily attributable to the country’s low 
productivity and competitiveness landscape.  A 
productivity led economic transformation growth 
is critical for Botswana to attain its growth targets.

The crucial challenge for productivity and 
competitiveness institutions like BNPC is not just 
to measure productivity and competitiveness as 
outcomes, but to be able to assess and track the 
country’s performance in terms of the underlying 
fundamentals that ultimately drive these results.  
It is at this level of underlying fundamentals 

that policy has to intervene in order to make a 
sustainable difference to Botswana’s standard of 
living over time.  

It is against this backdrop that the Ministry of 
Employment, Labour Productivity and Skills 
Development (MELSD) has commissioned the 
development of this National Productivity and 
Competitiveness Improvement Blueprint, to help 
stem the country’s declining productivity and 
competitiveness levels and help transition the 
country to a high-income economy.  

BNPC has thus submitted a position paper 
and inputs into the National Productivity and 
Competitiveness Improvement Blueprint, detailing 
areas of focus and improvement.  BNPC has joined 
forces with the Ministry (MELSD) towards conclusion 
of the Blueprint, with a view to ensuring a national 
strategic blueprint is resultant from the process.

National Productivity and 
Competitiveness Highlights

Estimates indicates that Total Factor Productivity 
(TFP) growth, for Botswana was -6.04% in 2020.  
The negative growth rate is a reflection of the 
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on both 
Botswana’s productivity and competitiveness’ 
position.  Unfortunately, the necessary imposed 
national control measures such as the lockdowns, 
curfews and social distancing measures have 
had implications on the overall efficiency in the 
production process.  Operational costs have also 
increased substantially, as businesses now needed 
to procure personal protective equipment (PPE) 
such as sanitizers, masks, and thermometers.

Figure 1 shows the trends of TFP growth rates 
between 1998 and 2020.  It should be noted, 
however, that the TFP figure for 2019 and 2020 
are estimates.  The figure clearly demonstrates 
that Botswana’s TFP growth rate mimics the 

Botswana National Productivity Centre Annual Report30



Figure 1: Botswana’s Total Factor Productivity Growth (1998 -2020)

Source BNPC (2019) and BNPC Estimates
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economic growth rate, throughout the period of 
review, such that low and negative productivity 
growth rates naturally correspond to years of low 
economic growth.  The data shows that during 
the recession years; 1998, 2009, 2015 and 2020, 
TPF growth was -8.38%, -12.84, -6.56% and -6.04%, 
respectively. 

It is noted that troughs in productivity growth 
coincided with recessions or economic 
slowdowns, even at a global level.  This 
indicates that while productivity is an important 
determinant of economic growth, as shown by 
numerous empirical studies, economic growth 
is also an essential driver of productivity.  This 
can be explained by the fact that increased 
economic growth enables a country to invest in 
technological advancements, human capital 

development and physical capital, which further 
boosts productivity. 

Labour and capital productivity estimates for 
2020 did not fare well either, with the growth 
estimates for these indicators being -6.95% and 
-8.75% respectively. Figure 2 shows Botswana’s 
labour and capital productivity from 1998 to 
2020.  These two graphs mirror one another as 
these two indicators are highly dependent on 
each other.  Generally, the higher the quality 
of labour employed in the production process; 
the higher will be the expected productivity of 
capital.   Likewise, higher quality of capital will 
result in higher productivity of labour. It should 
be noted that like TFP growth, labour and capital 
productivity growth also mimic economic growth. 

Unfortunately, the 2020 Global Competitiveness 
Report did not provide the competitiveness 
ranking and scores, due to the challenges 
presented by COVID-19 when collecting data.  

In 2020 Botswana’s competitiveness performance 
was assessed by IMD and included in their World 
Competitiveness Rankings, as a result of a new 
partnership between BNPC and IMD.  The IMD 
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figure 2: Labour and Capital Productivity Growth (1998 - 2020)  

Source BNPC (2019) and BNPC Estimates 
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figure 3: Botswana’s Competitiveness Ranking in the IMD Report (Out of 64 Countries)

figure 4: Botswana’s Total Factor Productivity Growth (1998 -2020)

Source BNPC (2019) and BNPC Estimates
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assessment examined Botswana’s capacity to 
create and maintain an environment which 
sustains the competitiveness of enterprises.  The 
assessment relied on a combination of hard 
statistics and a survey data gathered through 
an executive opinion survey. Overall Botswana 
ranks 60th out of the 64 economies included in 
the IMD World Competitiveness Ranking in 2020 
(Figure 3). 

The evaluation also focuses on four areas, 
referred to as factors, considered critical in 
promoting a nation’s overall competitiveness. 
These factors are Economic Performance, 
Government Efficiency, Business Efficiency, 
and Infrastructure.  In the Economic Performance 
factor, The Government Efficiency factor, The 
Business Efficiency factor and Infrastructure factor, 

Botswana ranked 62, 34, 62 and 62 respectively, in 
2020.  Out of 100, where this represents the best 
performance, Botswana scored 31.72, 57.3, 22.1 
and 21.0, in the macroeconomic performance 
factor, the Government Efficiency factor, the 
Business Efficiency factor and the infrastructure 
factor, respectively. The overall competitiveness 
performance Botswana attained in 2020 was 43.9. 

From a list of 15 indicators, respondents of the 
IMD executive opinion survey were asked to 
select 5 aspects they perceived as the key 
attractiveness features of Botswana’s economy. 
The top identified attractive feature as perceived 
by business executives was dynamism of the 
economy, with 55.7 respondents indicating the 
attractiveness of this feature. This was followed 
by open and positive attitudes, business friendly 
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figure 2: Labour and Capital Productivity Growth (1998 - 2020)  

Source BNPC (2019) and BNPC Estimates 
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Figure 5: Botswana’s Competitiveness Sub Factor Ranking in IMD Competitiveness Report   
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environment, effective legal environment and 
political stability and predictability, as shown in 
Figure 4.  

Figure 5 disaggregates Botswana’s performance 
by factor into subfactors.  In the Government 
Efficiency factor, the included sub factors are 
the Domestic Economy, International Trade, 
International Investment, Employment, and 
Prices.  Amongst these, Botswana performed the 
best under the Prices (cost of living) subfactor, 
with a ranking of 1 out of 64.  Poor performance 
was realised in the International Trade subfactor 
with a ranking of 63 out of 64.  The low ranking was 
mainly due to the low level of exports coupled 
with a heavily undiversified export base.  These 
results signal that Botswana’s export promotion 
efforts still requires urgent attention, irrespective 
of the work that has been undertaken so far.

The Government Efficiency factor refers to the 
extent to which governmental policies and 
regulations are conducive to competitiveness.  
In this factor, Botswana’s best performance 
was attained under the tax policy subfactor 
which ranked 9 out of 64.  Botswana’s worst 
performance under the government efficiency 
factor, on the other hand, was attained in the 
societal framework (position 54th out of 64).   The 
societal framework examines a set of indicators 
to evaluate fairness of the judicial system, 
income inequality and gender equality.  The 
unsatisfactory performance can be attributed to 
the low number of females in parliament, a low 
gender inequality index, a high-income equality 
measured by the Gini coefficient and a high 
homicide rate.  These variables have a deleterious 
effect on the competitiveness potential of any 
country including that of Botswana.  

Under the Business Efficiency factor, which 
encompasses the extent to which the national 

environment encourages the private sector 
to perform in an innovative, profitable, and 
responsible manner.  Botswana’s performance 
was not satisfactory under the productivity and 
efficiency sub sector.  Under this subfactor, 
the country was ranked 63rd as a result of 
low worker motivation and low use of digital 
tools and technology.  Low worker motivation 
and work ethics are serious challenges to 
productivity improvement in Botswana, as 
acknowledged by the recent national RESET 
Agenda initiative.  Consistent with the RESET 
Agenda observations, there is an urgent need 
for Batswana to adopt a mindset change if 
Botswana is to become more productive and 
thus achieve the national Vision-2036 objective 
of a high-income economy.

The infrastructure factor assesses the extent to 
which tangible and intangible assets available 
in the economy meet the needs of businesses. 
It includes aspects that encompass physical 
infrastructure, technological infrastructure, 
scientific infrastructure, health and environment 
and education. Botswana ranked 63 in the 
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Figure 5: Botswana’s Competitiveness Sub Factor Ranking in IMD Competitiveness Report   
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Technology Infrastructure subfactor. 

Overall, the IMD competitiveness assessment 
revealed that Botswana is mainly challenged 
in the following areas: undiversified exports, 
low worker motivation, low customer 
satisfaction, low and limited use of digital 
skills, slow internet connectivity and low level 
of telecommunication infrastructure. In order 
to advance Botswana’s productivity and 
competitiveness, these aspects need to be 
urgently addressed going forward.  

Introduction of KAIZEN/5S in the Health 
Sector

As part of its response programmes to the 
COVID-19 pandemic, BNPC partnered with 
the Japanese International Cooperation 
Agency (JICA) to institutionalise KAIZEN/5S 
in the Botswana national health system, with 
a long-term objective of enrolling all health 
facilities (Hospitals and Clinics). 

KAIZEN/5S is a Japanese productivity 
improvement philosophy based on the 
Lean Philosophy of constant, continuous 
improvement, working to ensure maximum 
quality, efficiency improvements, and 
elimination of waste.  It is premised on the 
belief that small and consistent process 
improvements over time can make a major 
difference.  Kaizen facilitates an environment 
that facilitates continuous improvement.

A strategic partnership with JICA to implement 
KAIZEN/5S in clinics and hospitals, is being 
negotiated in liaison with the Ministry of 
Health and Wellness.  The idea behind the 
KAIZEN intervention is to help improve not 
only housekeeping but patient care also, in all 
national health facilities. 

A pilot project, facilitated by the Ministry, 
has successfully been implemented at the 
Gaborone Extension-2 Clinic.
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Technology Infrastructure subfactor. 

Overall, the IMD competitiveness assessment 
revealed that Botswana is mainly challenged 
in the following areas: undiversified exports, 
low worker motivation, low customer 
satisfaction, low and limited use of digital 
skills, slow internet connectivity and low level 
of telecommunication infrastructure. In order 
to advance Botswana’s productivity and 
competitiveness, these aspects need to be 
urgently addressed going forward.  

Introduction of KAIZEN/5S in the Health 
Sector

As part of its response programmes to the 
COVID-19 pandemic, BNPC partnered with 
the Japanese International Cooperation 
Agency (JICA) to institutionalise KAIZEN/5S 
in the Botswana national health system, with 
a long-term objective of enrolling all health 
facilities (Hospitals and Clinics). 

KAIZEN/5S is a Japanese productivity 
improvement philosophy based on the 
Lean Philosophy of constant, continuous 
improvement, working to ensure maximum 
quality, efficiency improvements, and 
elimination of waste.  It is premised on the 
belief that small and consistent process 
improvements over time can make a major 
difference.  Kaizen facilitates an environment 
that facilitates continuous improvement.

A strategic partnership with JICA to implement 
KAIZEN/5S in clinics and hospitals, is being 
negotiated in liaison with the Ministry of 
Health and Wellness.  The idea behind the 
KAIZEN intervention is to help improve not 
only housekeeping but patient care also, in all 
national health facilities. 

A pilot project, facilitated by the Ministry, 
has successfully been implemented at the 
Gaborone Extension-2 Clinic.
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“Repositioning BNPC as the APEX National Productivity 
and Competitiveness Centre - A New Dawn”

The BNPC
Transformation Strategy 
2020-2023
                                     2020-2023: 
TRANSFORMATION 
STRATEGY

BNPC has reviewed its 
strategic focus for the 
2020 -2023 period.  The 
purpose of the strategy 
review was to ensure that 
all BNPC strategic initiatives 
ultimately lead to improved 
national productivity 
in competitiveness in 
Botswana, as measured 
by GDP; Labour and Total 
Factor Productivity Growth.  
This includes improved 
performance across all 
sectors of the economy, 
with a particular focus on 
national priority sectors – 
Mining, Agriculture, Tourism, 

Diamond Beneficiation and 
Financial Services, through 
leveraging technology, 
innovation, and indigenous 
knowledge.

The revised transformation 
strategy aims to guide 
and support the Centre as 
it re-positions itself to be 
the leader in driving the 
national productivity and 
competitiveness agenda, 
that is both societally and 
economically sustainable.  
BNPC will therefore, look 
beyond productivity inputs 
and outputs to outcomes 
and impact – creating a 
productivity led economic 
growth.
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INNOVATION
BNPC will institute a human centered design approach to problem solving. This approach will 

ensure the delivery of targeted programmes founded on research, technology, and innovation. 

Furthermore, the Centre will infuse indigenous knowledge within the innovation process to 

deliver a unique value proposition to national productivity improvement.    

PRODUCTIVITY CULTURE
BNPC will instill productivity- oriented attributes and behaviors across all levels of society. In doing 

so, the Centre will gain a deep understanding of the needs of Batswana and use them to 

transform the national work ethic. The results will be felt at community, enterprise and national 

levels.  

NATIONAL COMPETIVENESS
BNPC will ensure rigorous stakeholder coordination and engagement to ensure effective 

programme delivery across priority sectors of the economy. The centre will instill transparency 

and accountability at all levels to ensure effective implementation of programmes as well as 

monitoring and evaluation initiatives that drive national productivity and competitiveness.    

OGANISATIONAL EXCELLENCE

Through transformational leadership, BNPC will continuously improve operational effectiveness 

and strive towards achieving sustainability through engaged and motivated employees and 

stakeholders. The centre will position itself as a driver of national productivity.   

OUR ORGANISATIONAL 
TRANSFORMATION

The Centre’s mandate, per 
the BNPC Act, is primarily 
focused on the improvement 
of productivity, management-
labour relations, levels of 
management and stimulation 
of productivity consciousness 
throughout the economy; The 
national transformation and 
development agenda and the 
context within which the Centre 
operates continues to change, 
and therefore, the need to adapt 
and remain relevant is most 
crucial.  There is a need for the 
Centre to be agile, respond to 
emerging trends and adapt new 
ways of doing business, including 
embracing the fourth industrial 
revolution (4IR) and moving into 
the digital age:

1. Lead and champion 
improvement of the national 
productivity and global 
competitiveness rankings. 

2. Contribute towards the 
national ease of doing 
business reforms.

3. Deliver positively impactful 
productivity improvement 
products and services 
solutions, across all sectors of 
the economy; and

4. Embrace and be at the 

 forefront of driving and  
leveraging the Fourth Industrial 
Revolution (4IR) to drive 
the Centre’s and nation’s 
productivity and competitive 
indicators; thus, positively 
contribute to the national 
digital transformation agenda.

5. Mindset change to align 
with Botswana’s goal 
to attain high income 
country status. This means 
developing capacity for 
entrepreneurship, eliminating 
inferiority complex, and 
implementing government 
and strategic reforms that put 
citizen’s economic inclusion 
at the centre of economic 
development initiatives.

BNPC has completed a 
comprehensive review of its 
strategy, which aims for improved 
productivity, competitiveness, 
and enhanced stakeholder value, 
across all sectors of the economy.  
The transformation of BNPC shall 
ensure that BNPC is well poised 
to lead the national productivity 
and competitiveness agenda.  
Productivity and competitiveness 
are most crucial to the attainment 
of the national Economic 
Recovery and Transformation 
Programme (ERTP).

In leading the productivity 
agenda, the Centre shall re-align 
its business model such that it is 
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INNOVATION
BNPC will institute a human centered design approach to problem solving. This approach will 

ensure the delivery of targeted programmes founded on research, technology, and innovation. 

Furthermore, the Centre will infuse indigenous knowledge within the innovation process to 

deliver a unique value proposition to national productivity improvement.    

PRODUCTIVITY CULTURE
BNPC will instill productivity- oriented attributes and behaviors across all levels of society. In doing 

so, the Centre will gain a deep understanding of the needs of Batswana and use them to 

transform the national work ethic. The results will be felt at community, enterprise and national 

levels.  

NATIONAL COMPETIVENESS
BNPC will ensure rigorous stakeholder coordination and engagement to ensure effective 

programme delivery across priority sectors of the economy. The centre will instill transparency 

and accountability at all levels to ensure effective implementation of programmes as well as 

monitoring and evaluation initiatives that drive national productivity and competitiveness.    

OGANISATIONAL EXCELLENCE

Through transformational leadership, BNPC will continuously improve operational effectiveness 

and strive towards achieving sustainability through engaged and motivated employees and 

stakeholders. The centre will position itself as a driver of national productivity.   

                                                                                                                                                           
able to deliver its mandate across the differing 
impact levels – national, sectoral, organisational, 
and individual.  In addition, this will enable BNPC 
the opportunity to clearly define its role and 
advocate for the renewal of its mandate to be 
reflective of an innovative modern-day National 
Productivity Organisation (NPO).  The strategy 
will define the national productivity framework 
and be in line with national productivity 
blueprints (policies and strategies).

THE STRATEGIC THEMES

Strategic themes are a critical cross-cutting 
and mutually achievable factors that are 
supportive of the strategy.  These serve as pillars 
for the strategy and present the focus for the 
2020 – 2023 period. Therefore, the impact of 
the strategic outputs will be evidenced across 
the purposive themes as illustrated on the table 
below 

39



The strategic objectives are defined as below.

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES DEFINITION

Perspective Strategic Objective

Stakeholders 
& Customer

 IMPROVE NATIONAL 
PRODUCTIVITY AND
COMPETITIVESS

IMPROVE LABOUR 
PRODUCTIVITY

STRENGTHEN 
STAKEHOLDER 
ENGAGEMENT AND 
COORDINATION

ESTABLISH STRATEGIC 
PARTNERSHIPS

Financial

SECURE               
NON-SHAREHOLDER 
FUNDING

ENSURE OPTIMAL 
RESOURCE 
UTILIZATION

Develop
Transformational

Leadership Capability

Develop Productivity- 
Oriented culture

Develop NPO Core
Competencies

Lead the National
Productivity Agenda

Strengthen Research
and Innovation

Institute Targeted 
Programme Management
(Develop, Rollout & M&E) 

KR
A

s

Ensure Optimal
Resource Utilisation

GDP GROWTH GDP PER CAPITA
GROWTH

Establish Strategic
Partnerships

Strengthen
Stakeholder
Coordination

Secure Non-
shareholder Funding

Improve Labour
Productivity 

Improve National
Productivity & 

Competitiveness

The purpose of this objective is ensuring all BNPC strategic 
initiatives improve national productivity and competitiveness 
in Botswana. This will include improved performance across 
prioritized sectors – Manufacturing, Mining, Energy, 
Construction, Technology & Innovations, Agriculture, 
Creative Industry and Tourism (select focus).

The purpose of this objective it to improve labour 
productivity in line with local and international labour 
regulations.

This objective seeks to ensure that all stakeholders required
to drive the BNPC agenda are aligned and play their role in 
improving national productivity as a collective. 
Furthermore, this will ensure improved stakeholder support 
and buy-in on the national productivity improvement 
agenda.

BNPC recognises that strategic partnerships can offer a 
great deal of benefits to the Centre, such as the potential 
of high growth, increased revenues, market penetration, or 
new product development. The purpose of this objective is 
to ensure BNPC secures and leverages mutually beneficial 
and value adding strategic partnerships.

This objective seeks to ensure continued delivery of the 
BNPC mandate by diversified sources of funding. The 
purpose of this objective is to reduce reliance on the 
shareholder as a single source of funding.

The purpose of this objective is to ensure that BNPC 
prudently manages its financial resources. This will be as a 
result of effective cost management initiatives.

Objective Definition

THE STRATEGY

The goal of the BNPC transformation strategy 
is to ultimately deliver value by contributing 
towards national productivity improvement and 
competitiveness, economic growth, and 

                                                                                                                                                           
improvement of the standards of living of 
Batswana.  This is clearly aligned to Vision 2036 
which seeks to transform the country into a high-
income economy. 

The BNPC strategy map is presented below.
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The strategic objectives are defined as below.

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES DEFINITION

Perspective Strategic Objective

Stakeholders 
& Customer

 IMPROVE NATIONAL 
PRODUCTIVITY AND
COMPETITIVESS

IMPROVE LABOUR 
PRODUCTIVITY

STRENGTHEN 
STAKEHOLDER 
ENGAGEMENT AND 
COORDINATION

ESTABLISH STRATEGIC 
PARTNERSHIPS

Financial

SECURE               
NON-SHAREHOLDER 
FUNDING

ENSURE OPTIMAL 
RESOURCE 
UTILIZATION

Develop
Transformational

Leadership Capability

Develop Productivity- 
Oriented culture

Develop NPO Core
Competencies

Lead the National
Productivity Agenda

Strengthen Research
and Innovation

Institute Targeted 
Programme Management
(Develop, Rollout & M&E) 

KR
A

s

Ensure Optimal
Resource Utilisation

GDP GROWTH GDP PER CAPITA
GROWTH

Establish Strategic
Partnerships

Strengthen
Stakeholder
Coordination

Secure Non-
shareholder Funding

Improve Labour
Productivity 

Improve National
Productivity & 

Competitiveness

The purpose of this objective is ensuring all BNPC strategic 
initiatives improve national productivity and competitiveness 
in Botswana. This will include improved performance across 
prioritized sectors – Manufacturing, Mining, Energy, 
Construction, Technology & Innovations, Agriculture, 
Creative Industry and Tourism (select focus).

The purpose of this objective it to improve labour 
productivity in line with local and international labour 
regulations.

This objective seeks to ensure that all stakeholders required
to drive the BNPC agenda are aligned and play their role in 
improving national productivity as a collective. 
Furthermore, this will ensure improved stakeholder support 
and buy-in on the national productivity improvement 
agenda.

BNPC recognises that strategic partnerships can offer a 
great deal of benefits to the Centre, such as the potential 
of high growth, increased revenues, market penetration, or 
new product development. The purpose of this objective is 
to ensure BNPC secures and leverages mutually beneficial 
and value adding strategic partnerships.

This objective seeks to ensure continued delivery of the 
BNPC mandate by diversified sources of funding. The 
purpose of this objective is to reduce reliance on the 
shareholder as a single source of funding.

The purpose of this objective is to ensure that BNPC 
prudently manages its financial resources. This will be as a 
result of effective cost management initiatives.

Objective Definition
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Perspective Strategic Objective

Operations 
and Innovation

LEAD THE NATIONAL 
PRODUCTIVITY 
AGENDA

The purpose of this objective is to re-align the Centre’s 
business model such that it is able to deliver its mandate 
across the differing impact levels – national, sectoral/ 
organisational and community. In addition, this will enable 
BNPC the opportunity to clearly define its role and advocate 
for the renewal of its mandate to be reflective of an NPO.

STRENGTHEN 
RESEARCH AND 
INNOVATION

The purpose of this objective is to develop research and 
innovation capabilities required to position BNPC as 
solutionists to prevailing BNPC and national productivity 
challenges. Therefore, this objective will inform programme 
development and drive digitalization. Programmes under 
this objective shall leverage indigenous knowledge in 
seeking solutions to the BNPC and national productivity 
challenges.      

INSTITUTE TARGETED 
PROGRAMME 
MANAGEMENT

This objective seeks to ensure the development and rollout 
of informed and purposive national productivity 
programmes at different levels. The programmes will be 
delivered by either BNPC or identified partners/ 
stakeholders. Furthermore, their level of impact will be 
monitored and evaluated as part of effective programme 
management. Programme development will be anchored 
on research and innovation.       

Leadership 
and Talent

DEVELOP A 
PRODUCTIVITY 
ORIENTED CULTURE

The purpose of this objective is to instil and maintain a 
productivity-oriented culture within the Centre as an NPO 
itself. This will be done by employing effective talent 
management practices and creating a conducive working 
environment that will enable engagement and 
performance improvement.      

DEVELOP 
TRANSFORMATIONAL 
LEADERSHIP 
CAPABILITY 

The goal of the objective is to develop and continuously 
assess the requisite transformational leadership capabilities 
needed to drive the productivity-oriented culture and the 
national productivity agenda for Botswana as defined by 
the strategy.   

DEVELOP NPO CORE 
COMPETENCIES

As BNPC transforms into an NPO, the Centre intends to 
develop the requisite capabilities which include – research 
and innovation as well as national productivity master 
planning and implementation (programme development 
and implementation, stakeholder engagement and 
coordination as well as monitoring and evaluation).     

Objective Definition

Botswana National Productivity Centre Annual Report42



Perspective Strategic Objective

Operations 
and Innovation

LEAD THE NATIONAL 
PRODUCTIVITY 
AGENDA
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STRENGTHEN 
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innovation capabilities required to position BNPC as 
solutionists to prevailing BNPC and national productivity 
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development and drive digitalization. Programmes under 
this objective shall leverage indigenous knowledge in 
seeking solutions to the BNPC and national productivity 
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INSTITUTE TARGETED 
PROGRAMME 
MANAGEMENT

This objective seeks to ensure the development and rollout 
of informed and purposive national productivity 
programmes at different levels. The programmes will be 
delivered by either BNPC or identified partners/ 
stakeholders. Furthermore, their level of impact will be 
monitored and evaluated as part of effective programme 
management. Programme development will be anchored 
on research and innovation.       

Leadership 
and Talent

DEVELOP A 
PRODUCTIVITY 
ORIENTED CULTURE

The purpose of this objective is to instil and maintain a 
productivity-oriented culture within the Centre as an NPO 
itself. This will be done by employing effective talent 
management practices and creating a conducive working 
environment that will enable engagement and 
performance improvement.      

DEVELOP 
TRANSFORMATIONAL 
LEADERSHIP 
CAPABILITY 

The goal of the objective is to develop and continuously 
assess the requisite transformational leadership capabilities 
needed to drive the productivity-oriented culture and the 
national productivity agenda for Botswana as defined by 
the strategy.   

DEVELOP NPO CORE 
COMPETENCIES

As BNPC transforms into an NPO, the Centre intends to 
develop the requisite capabilities which include – research 
and innovation as well as national productivity master 
planning and implementation (programme development 
and implementation, stakeholder engagement and 
coordination as well as monitoring and evaluation).     

Objective Definition
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The national Vision 2036’s bold 
ambition is to transform Botswana 
from an upper middle income 
to a high-income economy. This 
noble ideal is underpinned by 
high levels of productivity and 
competitiveness. 

Vision 2036 Pillar 1, Sustainable 
Economic Development 
emphasises the need to sustain, 
transform and drive the country into 
a high-income bracket through high 
levels of productivity, knowledge-
based economy, productive and 
competitive workforce. Failure to 
address these factors effectively 
will undermine the country’s ability 
to operate at it’s full potential and 
adversely impact on its ambition of 
accomplishing an upper income 
status in the foreseeable future.

The Botswana National Productivity 
Centre (BNPC) is cognisant of it’s role 
to drive national productivity across 
all sectors to enable to country to 
attain it’s aspirations.

Total Factor Productivity (TFP) 
growth has been identified as a 

Environmental And Social 
Performance

key  performance indicator in 
Vision 2036, under the competitive 
and productive thematic area.  
As such the BNPC has been duly 
assigned as the accountable 
agent for this measure.  In view of 
this, the BNPC has undertaken to 

align to the Vision 2036 Pillar 
1, Sustainable Economic 
Development, through it’s 
new strategy; “Re-positioning 
the BNPC as the APEX 
National Productivity and 
Competitiveness Centre”.
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The BNPC’s deliberate move to contribute 
towards national productivity improvement 
and productivity led economic growth is 
evidently outlined thereon. The BNPC aims 
to reposition itself to drive productivity and 
competitiveness agenda. The BNPC seeks 
to achieve this by providing relevant and 
accurate data on labour productivity and 
total factor productivity across all sectors.  
Furthermore, the BNPC intends to adopt 
strategies that address poor work ethic and 
mindset change in the labour force, which are 
a great concern for workforce productivity 
and economic growth.

To this end, during the year under review, 
the BNPC partnered with IMD to assess the 
country’s competitiveness. The IMD assessment 
examined Botswana’s capacity to create and 
maintain an environment which sustains the 
competitiveness of enterprises. The assessment 
also provided an opportunity to highlight key 
challenges associated with competitiveness 
in Botswana, key amongst them including 
undiversified exports, lower worker motivation, 
slow internet and unavailability of digital skills. 
The IMD competitiveness indicators provide 
information that would lead to evidenced 
based policy formulation. Such policies would 
lead to key consideration for the attainment of 
Vision 2036.
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The 17 Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) 
enshrined in the United Nations (UN) 2030 Agenda 
for Sustainable Development, adopted by the 
193 Member States in 2015, represent a new 
global development compact. Encompassing 
three core dimensions - Economic, Social and 
Environmental development - the Agenda has 
become the centre of a renewed development 
framework for countries of the world, including 
Botswana, to meet the changing development 
priorities and development gaps that the 

Millennium Development Goals (MDG) were 
unable to close.

As a responsible good corporate citizen, 
BNPC has identified those SDGs that are most 
relevant to the Centre’s business operations. 
Being a National Productivity Centre, it is 
inevitable that progress gained in any one 
specific area of the SDGs (Economic, Social or 
Environmental dimensions), would generate 
both synergies and trade-offs in another.

BNPC and The Sustainable 
Development Goals 
Transforming our world:           
UN 2030 Agenda for Sustainable 
Development

Botswana National Productivity Centre Annual Report46



The health of the population is one of any nation’s greatest assets. Good 

health improves people’s wellbeing, their productive capacity and their 

ability to participate in society.

BNPC believes that a healthy employee will be more productive and active 

for long periods. BNPC provides training and health facilities such as, gym, 

clinic and playing grounds for its employees.  The Centre further provides 

voluntary basic vital signs checks to staff and customers visiting its facilities.  

The services provided include: Blood Sugar Levels, Blood Pressure, Body-

Mass Index, Heart Rate, Spatial Oxygenation, Temperature and Weight.

The fundamental human need is food; hence food security is a national 

priority for all countries. The complexity of delivering enough food to 

a national population and to the whole world’s population, highlights 

why food security is important for all. 

BNPC collaborated with the Ministry of Agriculture and Food Security 

to conduct an evaluation of the Integrated Support Program of 

Arable Agriculture Development (ISPAAD).  Since the inception of the 

program, the main objective was to establish the impact of ISPAAD on 

grain production and productivity in Botswana.  The results will be used 

to  further strengthen national policies on agriculture and food security.

SDG 2: END HUNGER, ACHIEVE FOOD SECURITY 
and IMPROVED NUTRITIONSURE and PROMOTE 
SUSTAINABLE AGRICULTURE

SDG 3: ENSURE HEALTHY LIVES and PROMOTE WELL-
BEING FOR ALL AT ALL AGES
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Future developments are inseparable from talents and culture. There are 

currently more than 265 million children out of school worldwide, which 

greatly hinders social and economic development.  Only when the need 

for the required skills is satisfied can we promote the fair development of the 

whole society.

BNPC’s Training Programmes are designed to be innovative and to make an 

impact.  We believe that training should provide participants with the capability 

and the motivation to make real improvements in workplace performance, 

for both the individual and employer. Performance improvement only occurs 

as a result of change. 

At BNPC, we believe that along with the responsibility to provide training, is 

the responsibility to help create the environment to turn ideas into actions 

through the application of new knowledge in the workplace. 

SDG 4: ENSURE INCLUSIVE and EQUITABLE QUALITY EDUCATION 
and PROMOTE LIFELONG LEARNING OPPORTUNITIES

The UN Sustainable Development Agenda shows that the number of 

girls enrolled in schools has increased significantly compared to 2000; an 

indicator of a global shift towards gender equality in schools.

Consistent with national legislation and policies and in support of the  

SDG-5, BNPC promotes equal opportunities and quality education for all. 

SDG 5: ACHIEVE GENDER EQUALITY and EMPOWER ALL 
WOMEN and GIRLS

SDG 8
PROMOTE SUSTAINED, INCLUSIVE & 
SUSTAINABLE ECONOMIC GROWTH, 
FULL & PRODUCTIVE EMPLOYMENT & 

DECENT WORK FOR ALL
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SDG 8
PROMOTE SUSTAINED, INCLUSIVE & 
SUSTAINABLE ECONOMIC GROWTH, 
FULL & PRODUCTIVE EMPLOYMENT & 

DECENT WORK FOR ALL

Over half of the world’s population still lives on the 

equivalent of about US$2 a day. Job creation stands 

as an opportunity, not only to generate decent work 

opportunities, but also to provide more robust, inclusive 

and poverty-reducing growth.

BNPC conducted a national work ethic assessment 

study, in 2018, to address the perceived poor work 

ethic in the national labour force; which has been 

listed as one of the most problematic factors hindering 

the ease of doing business in Botswana, over the years.  

The study provides information and recommendations 

that serve as important inputs in the development of 

interventions towards improving productivity of the 

local labour market.
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SDG 17: STRENGTHEN THE MEANS OF IMPLEMENTATION and 
REVITALIZE THE GLOBAL PARTNERSHIP FOR SUSTAINABLE 
DEVELOPMENT

                                                                                                                                          

United Nations member states have identified a number of critical areas 

that can help in achieving SDGs. These areas include resource mobilization, 

technology, capacity-building, trade, policy and institutional coherence, 

multi-stakeholder partnerships, and data, monitoring and accountability. 

BNPC have entered into collaboration and cooperation agreements 

with a number of key institutions, both locally and internationally, to 

contribute towards the development of coherent policies that will help in 

providing, enabling and conducive environment in Botswana. BNPC lead 

a sub-committee of the National Doing Business Committee that advise the 

country on productivity and competitiveness matters.

Future developments are inseparable from talents and culture. Inequality 

has become one of the most complex and vexing challenges in the global 

economy. Inequality of opportunity, gender inequality and inequality of 

income and wealth are all present in our societies.

BNPC as an equal opportunity employer and service provider offers unique 

perspectives, through its products and services to enrich views that help 

resist any temptation toward inequality. 

SDG 10: REDUCE INEQUALITY WITHIN and AMONG COUNTRIES

"Be a global citizen. Act with 
passion and compassion. Help us 
make this world safer and more 
sustainable today and for the 
generations that will follow us. 
That is our moral responsibility." 

– Peter F. Drucker

SDG 16
 PROMOTE PEACEFUL & INCLUSIVE 

SOCIETIES FOR SUSTAINABLE 
DEVELOPMENT, PROVIDE ACCESS TO 
JUSTICE FOR ALL & BUILD EFFECTIVE, 

ACCOUNTABLE & INCLUSIVE 
INSTITUTIONS AT ALL LEVELS
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SDG 16
 PROMOTE PEACEFUL & INCLUSIVE 

SOCIETIES FOR SUSTAINABLE 
DEVELOPMENT, PROVIDE ACCESS TO 
JUSTICE FOR ALL & BUILD EFFECTIVE, 

ACCOUNTABLE & INCLUSIVE 
INSTITUTIONS AT ALL LEVELS

It has been shown that business thrives in peaceful 

environments where good governance, effective 

business practices and the rule of law prevails.

BNPC is dedicated to maintaining a values-based 

organisation with a culture of good governance 

and ethical conduct, where culture supports the 

effective functioning of core systems and processes. 

Against this background, BNPC has institutionalised 

risk management and adherence to the rule of law. 

The Centre has partnered with the Directorate on 

Corruption and Economic Crime to develop a robust 

Anticorruption Framework. Procurement is also aligned 

to the tenants espoused in the government’s policy on 

citizen empowerment, the Economic Diversification                   

Drive  and Youth Empowerment Programmes.
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At BNPC we believe “Safety, Health, 
Environment and Quality” is a core value of 
our business.  As we continue to transform 
our business to provide more impactful 
productivity and competitiveness 
solutions to our customers across the 
country, it is important that we continue 
to maintain exemplary standards of SHEQ 
management and performance.

Our employees are the organisation’s 
greatest asset. BNPC is committed to 
protecting their health, safety and wellness. 
We strive to achieve zero harm through 
collective responsibility, commitment and 
risk awareness. Our targeted health, safety 
and wellness strategies and programmes 
are in place to help us achieve this. 
Throughout the COVID-19 pandemic, we 
continuously leveraged and enhanced our 
existing health and wellness programmes 
to protect our employees, suppliers and 
the communities.

Safety, Health, Environment

52



■ Improvement of occupational health and safety 
by managing and controlling health hazards in the 
workplace.

■ To promote and ensure a healthy and safe 
workplace for both our staff, visitors and customers. 

■ To enhance employee SHEQ awareness; ensuring 
our employees can readily identify and manage 
risks and continuously improve quality of services 
to customers, both internal and external.

■ To maintain a high level of quality services that 
meets and exceed customer requirements and 
expectations.

Our Quality Policy

BNPC is an ISO 9001:2015 Certified Organisation. The 
certification is key in assuring our customers, strategic 
partners and various stakeholders the level of quality 
service the Centre provides.  It also affirms that the 
Centre is a well-run business which has requisite 
structures, is stable and ready for growth.  The Centre 
undergoes periodic audits against the requirements 
of the standard, by an independent body to check 
the conformance to the standard.

Our quality standards are further underpinned by our 
quality policy.

Objectives                                   
of Our SHEQ Program 

“We commit to providing 
impactful transformational 
services in productivity and 
quality improvement to meet 
expectations of all interested 
parties.

This will be achieved by 
setting objectives against 
which the Centre will 
measure, manage and 
communicate progress, 
and continually improve the 
Quality Management System 
to ensure compliance with all 
applicable requirements”.

BNPC is an ISO 9001:2015 
Certified Organisation

ISO 9001
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BNPC and Our Community 
(CSI)
BNPC RESPONSE TO COVID-19 CRISIS THROUGH 
CORPORATE SOCIAL INVESTMENT (CSI)

BNPC endeavours to be a responsible 
corporate citizen dedicated to meeting the 
highest standards of ethics and professionalism 
in line with it’s core values in terms of which the 
Centre aspires for the following; Collaborative, 
Integrity, Result Oriented, Compassionate and 
Innovation. 

 The BNPC Corporate Social Investment Agenda 
is governed by two principles: Compliance 
and Proactiveness. Compliance refers to 
our company’s commitment to legality and 
willingness to observe community values and 
the general code of corporate governance. 
The Centre also undertakes to be Proactive 
in helping disadvantaged communities, thus 
contributing to the national agenda geared 
towards the reduction of poverty, enhance 
productivity through implementation of 

Productivity and Quality solutions in selected 
sectoral groups and the protection of natural 
environment. 

The CSI policy was set with the objective 
to impact positively on issues affecting 
communities through undertaking sustainable 
initiatives for the benefit of communities. The 
policy aims to establish and maintain enduring 
relationships with its stakeholders as a way 
of improving the image of the Centre and 
increasing its footprint. It defines activities 
and programmes which the Centre plans to 
undertake in conformity with its mandate. 
The CSI program aims to further explain the 
modalities of execution of the activities and 
programmes as well as provide clarity on 
the CSI Programme Performance Monitoring 
Process.                                                                                   
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BNPC RESPONSE

The current situation derived from the 
pandemic, in general terms, has made it clear 
that many companies’ behaviours have been 
exemplary, namely adapting their Corporate 
Social Investment (CSI) policies and actions to 
current health, economic, and social needs.

Therefore, the crisis resulting from the 
pandemic has caused a change in the way 
that corporations pursue their economic, 
social, and environmental objectives, giving 
greater importance to the role they must 
play in society. In this new scenario, firms 
need to adopt their CSI strategies in order to 
establish a business commitment to society 
and vulnerable groups, especially those 
closest to them, which is the local environment 
associated with the country of origin of the 
firms or territories in which companies operate 
and have a greater presence. 

In view of the foregoing, the BNPC embarked 
on a Corporate Social Investment (CSI) event 
to donate stationery and Personal Protective 
Equipment (PPE) to Mogoditshane Senior 
Secondary School Guidance and Counselling 
Department. The donation was specifically 
targeted towards the fight against the spread 
of Covid-19 in the school. 

On Mother’s Day, the BNPC through CSI 
committee, honoured all BNPC ladies with 
pink customised cupcakes. This was a way 
of appreciating and embracing them on 
their special day, as one of the committee’s 
initiatives.

Consequently, the Centre also embarked on 
capacitating selected companies on Labour 
Management Relations. This project entails 
assessing organisations on issues that impact 
negatively on labour relations and work ethic, 
then coming up with solutions to close identified 
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gaps. The project aims to improve relations 
between employees and employers. The 
companies that were enrolled in 2020-2021 are 
from manufacturing and agricultural sectors. 
The decision to support these sectors was in 
line with Government priorities of strengthening 
key drivers of the economy, diversification, and 
employment creation and those sectors are 
key for economic growth. The companies from 
the manufacturing sector included; Alazhur 
Group Traders, DL Naturals, Os Fashions, TJ 
Aviation Trimmers, Ina Lebe, Lithoflex, Onias 
Industries and Super Ideas. From the agricultural 
sector BNPC assisted BO Intertrading, Chini 
Holdings, Dobi Feeds, Mogobane Irrigation 
Scheme, Mothata Poultry Farm, Earth Vitamins 
and Yamikani Holdings. These companies were 
selected randomly from the Local Enterprise 
Authority (LEA) list of assisted companies.

In addition, the BNPC engaged Botswana 
Organisation for Rare Diseases (BORDIS) in the 
development of their strategy. The objective 
of this consultancy is to develop the BORDIS’s 
strategy so that it achieves it’s operational 
efficiency and fulfils the needs and expectations 
of stakeholders. The BNPC was tasked with the 
following activities, undertaking of literature 
review of BORDIS as well as that of key 

stakeholders, preparation of draft situational 
analysis report, development of thematic 
areas and strategic objectives, monitoring and 
evaluation plan, including the risk plan. Other 
tasks included the development of strategic 
initiatives and the production of draft strategy/
scorecard. In the end, the Centre produced 
a final score card which was presented to the 
Board and Management. 

These interventions are expected;   

■ To demonstrate the Centre’s corporate 
social responsibility behaviour that is 
concerned about stakeholders and their 
environment of operation.

■ To demonstrate and live out the core values 
of the Centre.

■ To maximise visibility and ensure top of 
mind presence in the Centres’ operating 
environment.

■ To impact positively on issues affecting 
communities through undertaking sustainable 
initiatives for the benefit of communities. 

■ To establish and maintain enduring 
relationships with it’s stakeholders as a way 
of improving the image of the Centre and 
increasing it’s footprint. 

“The real strategic differentiation is to create true 
value, look forward, not backward, and present 

the advanced uniqueness to shine through.”
― Pearl Zhu, Digitizing Boardroom: The Multifaceted Aspects of Digital Ready Boards
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1.  Statement of Commitment

Corporate governance is the system 
of rules, practices, and processes by 
which an organisation is directed and 
controlled and provides a framework for 
attaining an organisation's objectives.

BNPC subscribes to principles of Good 
Corporate Governance and Ethical 
standards.

The BNPC Board, as the principal 
custodian of the Centre’s corporate 
governance, is responsible for ensuring 
that the Centre adopts good principles 
of corporate governance. To that 
extent, the Board has adopted the King 
Code of Corporate Governance III and 
ensures the Centre substantially applies 
the principles of the Code in it’s day-to-
day operations.

2.  Establishment of the Board 

Section 4 (1) of the Botswana 
National Productivity Centre Act of 
1993 establishes the Board which is 
mandated with governing the Centre. 

3.  Composition of the Board

The BNPC Act provides that the Board 
shall be comprised of the Chairperson, 
the Executive Director and not less than 
10 or more than 13 other members. The 
membership of the Board is thus 12 to 
15 Directors with the quorum standing 
at eight (8). 

During the 2020/21 financial year, 
the Board was comprised of eleven 
(11) Board Members, inclusive of the 
Chairperson and Executive Director; 
with one (1) vacancy.

The BNPC Board is constituted by the 
tripartite, comprising representatives 
from Government, employers and 
workers’ organisations and the business 
sector.

4. Board Appointments and        
    Resignations

During the period under review there 
was appointment of eleven 11 Board 
Members (8) renewals and three (3) 
new appointments all on a one (1) 
year term.

5.  Role of the Board 

The Board is accountable for the 
governance and performance of the 
Centre.  It is responsible for setting the 
strategic direction; mission and vision 
of the organisation.  It is also responsible 
for approving key policies and ensuring 
that the Centre meets stakeholder 
needs and for the management of 
corporate risks.

6.  Board Charter

The Board Charter regulates the 
parameters within which the Board 
operates whilst also ensuring the 
application of the principles of good 

Governance  
Corporate Governance Report
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corporate governance in all dealings by, 
in respect of and on behalf of the Centre.

The Charter defines the role of the Board, 
clarifies their fiduciary responsibilities and 
composition. The Board’s principal duties 
include;

a) Formulation and implementation of   
     the Centre’s Strategy;

b) Monitoring and evaluation of     
     organisational performance;

c) Identification and management of  
     key risks; 

d) Ensuring compliance with statutes, 
regulations, business and ethical 
standards as well as principles of good 
corporate governance;

e) Ensuring that there is in place a 
sound system of management and 
controls;

f)  Looking out for the welfare and 
appropriate staffing.

The Charter is reviewed every three (3) 
years to ensure its adaptation to recent 
changes in law and corporate governance 
while also ensuring responsiveness to 
emerging issues.

7.  Board Member’s Skills and 
     Diversity Matrix

The Centre has a Board made up of highly 
skilled and qualified directors from diverse 
backgrounds, qualifications, experience, 
functional expertise, and personal skills 
and qualities. This allows for infusion of 
diverse perspectives in decision making.

8.  Board Independence Levels

The BNPC Board has 3 types of Directors; 

Independent Non-Executive Directors, 
are not involved in the day to day 
operations of the Centre and are not 
representatives of the shareholder. They 
hold no interest, position, association or 
relationship which may be seen to be 
likely to unduly influence or cause bias to 
their decision making, on the basis of their 
association with the shareholder.

Non-Executive Directors, although not 
involved in the day- to-day operations 
of the Centre, they are directors who 
are representatives of the Shareholder or 
any of the tripartite parties constituting 
the Board; in this case the parent Worker 
representatives; Business representatives; 
and the Shareholder (Government) 
representatives.

Executive Director is in the Chief 
Executive Officer of BNPC and is a full-
time salaried employment of the Centre 
and is responsible for the day-to-day 
management and running of the Centre. 
The Executive Director is accountable to 
the Board. 

“Leadership requires 
belief in the mission and 
unyielding perseverance 
to achieve victory.” 
– Jocko Willink
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Board Committees

In the course and scope of discharging their 
duties, the Board is empowered to delegate 
part of it’s duties to Board Committees, for 
effective execution of it’s mandate. The 
delegation of some of the Board’s functions 
to these committees does not translate into 
relinquishment of the Board’s accountability. 

The Board has set up the following Board 
committees;

a)  Audit, Finance and Risk Committee

b)  Strategy Committee
c)  Human Resources Committee
d)  Procurement and Asset Disposal Committee

The Board committees are regulated through 
Board approved charters. They regularly report 
to the Board. Save for the Audit, Finance 
and Risk Committee which is chaired by an 
Independent Non-Executive Director, the other 
committees are chaired by 
Non-Executive Directors. 

9/11 2/11

0  - 5 YEARS 6 -  10 YEARS

TENURE

Male
8 out of 11

Female
3 out of 11

  GENDER

1 out of 11

1 out of 11

9 out of 11

AGE

Currently the Board has two (2) Independent members, eight (8) Non-Executive members and 
one(1) Executive Director.

Tenure, Age and Gender
The summary of the director’s tenure, Age and Gender is as shown in the infographic below;

30 - 40 
years

50 - 60 years

40 - 50 
years
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Audit, Finance and Risk Committee

Members

■   Mrs Maipelo P Motshwane (Chairperson)
■   Mr Keeper Morgan
■   Mr Jacob Momene
■   Mr Christopher Diswai

Mandate of the Committee

The Audit, Finance and Risk Committee 
provides the Board with objective advice and 
assurance regarding the effective operation 
of the system of internal control; compliance 
with the relevant legislative requirements and 
management of risk. The committee also 
ensures that the management of accounts 
and annual financial statements provide 
adequate assurance that the financial 
disclosures made by management portray the 
true picture of the Centre’s financial standing, 
as well as the results of operations and long-
term commitments.
                                                                                
Strategy Committee

Members

■   Mr Norman Moleele (Chairperson)
■   Dr Moreetsi Thobega
■   Dr Tinaye Mmusi
■   Mr Christopher Diswai

Mandate of the Committee

The Strategy Committee considers the Centre’s 
operational strategy, together with it’s related 
supporting policies and initiatives, before 
recommending them to the Board for approval.                                                            

Human Resources Committee

Members

■ Mr Thusang Butale(Chairperson)
■ Mrs Grace Siamisang 
■  Mr Boniface Tsheko 
■  Mr Christopher Diswai

Mandate of the Committee

The Human Resources Committee’s function is 
to consider and recommend human resources 
strategy and supporting policies, as well 
as recommend appointment of Executive 
Management to the Board.
                                                                
Procurement and Asset Disposal 
Committee

Members

■   Dr Moreetsi Thobega (Chairperson)
■   Dr Tinaye Mmusi
■   Mr Keeper Morgan
■   Mr Christopher Diswai

Board Committees 
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Mandate of the Committee 

The Procurement and Asset Disposal Committee 
is responsible for considering procurement 
policies together with its supporting procedures 
and guidelines; adjudicate tenders and dispose-
off unserviceable items within defined limits.

Board Meetings

The Board meets every quarter to ensure that 
the duties of the committees are carried out 
effectively and diligently. 

Name Board Of                   
Directors

Human 
Resources 

Committee

Procurement 
and Asset 

Disposal Com-
mittee

Audit and 
Finance 

Committee

Strategy 
Committee

1. Mr Nelson Letshwene 5/5

2. Mr Norman Moleele 4/5 5/5

3. Dr Tinaye Mmusi 5/5 3/3 5/5

4. Ms Grace Siamisang 5/5 4/4

5. Mr Keeper Morgan 5/5 3/3 3/5

6. Dr Moreetsi Thobega 5/5 3/3 5/5

7. Mr Thusang Butale 5/5 4/4

8. Mrs Maipelo Motshwane 5/5 5/5

9. Mr Boniface Tsheko 4/5 3/4

10. Mr Jacob Momene 5/5 4/5

11. Mr Christopher Diswai 5/5 4/4 3/3 5/5 5/5

Summary of Board and Sub Committee Meetings held during 2020/21
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BNPC AND COMPLIANCE WITH THE KING-III CODE FOR GOOD CORPORATE GOVERNANCE –      
AS AT 31 MARCH 2021

KING III

CHAPTER 1: ETHICAL LEADERSHIP AND CORPORATE CITIZENSHIP

1.1 The Board should provide 
effective leadership based on 
an ethical foundation.   

In accordance with the BNPC’s Board Charter, the Board 
is the guardian of the values and ethics of the Centre. 
The BNPC Board leads with integrity, and is committed to 
creating an environment which cultivates ethical standards. 
Members inter alia, declare potential and actual conflicts of 
interest at every meeting and do not conduct any business 
with the Centre. 

1.2 The Board should ensure that 
the company is and seen to 
be a responsible corporate 
citizen.   

The Corporate Social Investment (CSI) policy approved by 
the Board, guides the Centre in it’s corporate responsibility 
agenda. The Policy is operationalized on an annual basis.

During the year, BNPC embarked on two CSI initiatives; 
(a) Donation of COVID-19 PPEs, sanitizers and stationery 
to Mogoditshane Senior Secondary School at the value of 
P92,810 and (b) Development of the Botswana Organisation 
for Rare Diseases (BORDIS) which came at a sponsorship 
amount of P383, 040. 

1.3 The Board should ensure that 
the company’s ethics are 
managed effectively.   

The Centre has a Code of Conduct and a number of 
ethics related policies. The Code enforces ethical business 
practices and is designed to assist employees make ethical 
decisions. The Code and policies are an essential part of 
the employee induction programme and are incorporated 
in employment contracts. Over and above this, the Centre 
is committed to ensuring that it’s business is in accordance 
with applicable national laws, rules and regulations.

The Centre is also in the process of developing an Ethics 
Management Framework which will be supported by 
periodic ethics assessments in order to monitor adherence 
to the adopted organisation’s ethical standards.
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Chapter 2: Boards and Directors
2.1 The Board should act as the 

focal point for and custodian 
of corporate governance.   

 

BNPC is led by a Board which governs and has effective 
control of the organisation. The Board is committed to and 
endorses the highest standards  of corporate governance. 

Although the Centre has delegated some of it’s functions 
to sub-committees, for purposes of maintaining effective 
control, the Board meets on a quarterly basis, and remains 
the accountable authority. 

2.2 The Board should appreciate 
that strategy, risk, performance 
and sustainability are 
inseparable.   

The Board, through the Strategy Committee, monitors 
performance against the strategy. The Committee is 
responsible for, among others, ensuring that the Centre’s 
strategy and business plans are not encumbered by 
risks that have not been thoroughly examined and 
planned for by management. This is done by overseeing 
the management of identified risks affecting strategy 
implementation, and continuously monitoring their 
mitigation. 

The Board is also responsible for aligning the strategic 
objectives, vision and mission with performance and 
sustainability considerations. The Centre’s risk management 
process considers a plethora of risks including strategic 
and operational risk encompassing performance and 
sustainability. 

2.3 The Board should provide 
effective leadership based on 
an ethical foundation. 

The Board is committed to highest standards of integrity. 
It’s operations are regulated through a Board Charter. The 
Centre has a board approved Code of Conduct. 

2.4 The Board should ensure that 
the company is and seen to 
be a responsible corporate 
citizen.   

The Centre is committed to managing the social, 
environmental, and economic effects of its operations 
responsibly and in line with public expectations. One 
of the values entrenched in the Corporate Strategy is 
“Compassion”. Against this background, the Centre has 
developed the Corporate Social Investment (CSI) Policy 
which guides the Centre’s CSI agenda. 

Botswana National Productivity Centre Annual Report66



Chapter 2: Boards and Directors
2.1 The Board should act as the 
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to sub-committees, for purposes of maintaining effective 
control, the Board meets on a quarterly basis, and remains 
the accountable authority. 
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inseparable.   
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performance against the strategy. The Committee is 
responsible for, among others, ensuring that the Centre’s 
strategy and business plans are not encumbered by 
risks that have not been thoroughly examined and 
planned for by management. This is done by overseeing 
the management of identified risks affecting strategy 
implementation, and continuously monitoring their 
mitigation. 

The Board is also responsible for aligning the strategic 
objectives, vision and mission with performance and 
sustainability considerations. The Centre’s risk management 
process considers a plethora of risks including strategic 
and operational risk encompassing performance and 
sustainability. 

2.3 The Board should provide 
effective leadership based on 
an ethical foundation. 

The Board is committed to highest standards of integrity. 
It’s operations are regulated through a Board Charter. The 
Centre has a board approved Code of Conduct. 

2.4 The Board should ensure that 
the company is and seen to 
be a responsible corporate 
citizen.   

The Centre is committed to managing the social, 
environmental, and economic effects of its operations 
responsibly and in line with public expectations. One 
of the values entrenched in the Corporate Strategy is 
“Compassion”. Against this background, the Centre has 
developed the Corporate Social Investment (CSI) Policy 
which guides the Centre’s CSI agenda. 

2.5 The Board should ensure that 
the company’s ethics are 
managed effectively.    

The Board, through the Audit, Finance and Risk Committee, 
provides oversight and ensures that the Centre conducts 
its business in a transparent and ethical manner.  The Code 
of Conduct promotes ethical conduct within the Centre.

2.6 The Board should ensure that 
the company has an effective 
and independent audit 
committee.   

The Board committee responsible for audit comprises 
of one independent non-executive director, two non-
executive directors and one executive director.

2.7 The Board should be 
responsible for the 
governance of risk.   

Risk Management is embedded in key decision-making 
processes. Those processes have incorporated in them 
strategy, governance, compliance and performance. 
Risk Management is a standing agenda item in Board 
deliberations.

2.8 The Board should be 
responsible for Information 
Technology (IT) governance.   

The Centre has developed an ICT Strategy. The Audit, 
Finance and Risk Committee oversees the implementation 
of the ICT framework, policies and cybersecurity. Internal 
and external auditors perform regular ICT audits and 
significant findings reported to the Audit, Finance and Risk 
Committee. 

ICT findings and observations reports are reviewed at 
Board meetings every quarter.

2.9 The Board should ensure that 
the company complies with 
applicable laws and considers 
adherence to non-binding 
rules, codes and standards.   

The Board through the office of the Board Secretary and 
Executive Director, is responsible for ensuring the Centre’s 
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, codes of 
best practice as well as voluntary codes. The Centre’s 
compliance standards are captured in various policies. 

With a view to optimize and standardize compliance, the 
Centre is developing a Compliance Programme. This will 
go a long way in ensuring that compliance becomes an 
integral part of the business and that systematic periodic 
reviews are undertaken to measure the effectiveness of 
the Programme.
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2.10 The Board should ensure that 
there is an effective risk-based 
internal audit. 

The Centre’s Internal Audit Function conducts its audits in 
accordance with best practice risk-based methodologies. 
The function reports directly to the Audit, Finance and Risk 
Committee.  

2.11 The Board should appreciate 
that stakeholders` perceptions 
affect the company’s 
reputation.   

The Board recognizes that effective stakeholder 
management is critical to the success of the Centre. 
With the current strategy, the Centre has identified and 
categorized its stakeholders according to their level and 
nature of influence on the Centre, the impact the Centre 
has on them and the level to which the Centre would like 
to collaborate, involve or consult with them. The Centre 
has invested in understanding their needs and views.

2.12 The Board should ensure the 
integrity of the company’s 
integrated report.  

Each year and in line with good corporate governance, 
the Centre reports on the Financial Statements and issues 
of Corporate Governance.

2.13 The Board should report 
on the effectiveness of the 
company’s system of internal 
controls.  

The Board is accountable for risk management and 
internal controls. The Board through the Audit, Finance and 
Risk Committee ensures and monitors the effectiveness of 
internal controls.

2.14 The Board and its directors 
should act in the best interests 
of the company.   

The Board acknowledges its fiduciary role and is required 
to act at all times in the best interest of the Centre. 

Declaration of Interest Register is maintained at all 
Committee and Board meetings.

2.15 The Board should consider 
business rescue proceedings  
or other turnaround 
mechanisms as soon as 
the company is financially 
distressed as defined in the 
Act.   

Going Concern Reviews are conducted annually as part 
of the external audit process.
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2.16 The Board should elect a 
chairman of the Board who is 
an independent non-executive 
director. The chief executive 
officer of the company 
should not also fulfil the role of 
chairman of the Board.  

The Chairman is an Independent Non – Executive 
Director, appointed consistent with the requirements of 
the BNPC Act.  The CEO is not the Chairman of the Board. 

2.17 The Board should appoint the 
chief executive officer and 
establish a framework for the 
delegation of authority.  

The Centre’s CEO was appointed effective 2nd May 2019, 
following a recommendation from the Board. The CEO 
is given delegated authority for effective and efficient 
operation of the Centre.  

2.18 The Board should comprise 
a balance of power, with a 
majority of non-executive 
directors. 

The majority of non-
executive directors should be 
independent.   

Only two of the Directors are independent Non-Executive 
Directors; being the Board Chairperson and Chairperson 
to the Audit, Finance and Risk Committee.  The Board has 
one Executive Director in line with the BNPC Act.

2.19 Directors should be appointed 
through a formal process. 

The BNPC Act sets out the appointment process which is 
driven by the Minister.

2.20 The induction of and ongoing 
training and development of 
directors should be conducted 
through formal processes.

New appointees to the Board are familiarized with the 
business of the Centre through a customized induction 
programme.

2.21 The Board should be assisted 
by a competent, suitably 
qualified and experienced 
company secretary. 

The Centre has a qualified Board Secretary.

2.22 The evaluation of the Board, its 
committees and the individual 
directors should be performed 
every year. 

During the year under review, the Board undertook 
Board Appraisals which process was led by an 
independent service provider. The Board, Committees 
and individual board members were assessed.
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2.23 The Board should delegate 
certain functions to well-
structured committees but 
without abdicating its own 
responsibilities.   

The Board has delegated certain functions without 
abdicating its own responsibilities to the following 
committees: 

i)  Audit, Finance and Risk Committee; 
ii) Strategy Committee;
iii) Human Resources Committee; and 
iv) Procurement and Asset Disposal Committee. 

2.24 A governance framework 
should be agreed between 
the group and its subsidiary 
Boards.   

This is not applicable to the Centre.

2.25 Companies should remunerate 
directors and executives fairly 
and responsibly.   

Directors are paid a sitting allowance in line with the 
directive of the Ministry while employee remuneration is 
guided by a Board approved Salary Structure.

2.26 Companies should disclose 
the remuneration of each 
individual director and certain 
senior executives. 

The remuneration of the directors is consolidated under 
related party disclosures.

2.27 Shareholders should approve 
the company’s remuneration 
policy.   

The Board approves the Centre’s rewards and 
remuneration policies, consistent with the Government’s 
(Shareholder) guidelines and directives.

The Centre is currently reviewing its Rewards and 
Remuneration Policy; which shall be subject to governance 
and approval process.

CHAPTER 3 : Audit Committee
3.1 The Board should ensure that 

the company has an effective 
and independent Audit 
Committee.   

The Centre has an effective Audit, Finance and Risk 
Committee of which the Chairperson is an Independent 
Non-Executive Director.   
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3.2 Audit committee members 
should be suitably skilled and 
experienced independent 
non-executive directors. 

The four Members of the Audit, Finance and Risk Committee 
are all suitably skilled and experienced directors.

Only one of the directors however, is an Independent 
Non-Executive Director. 

3.3 The Audit Committee should 
be chaired by an independent 
non-executive director.   

The Chairman of the Committee is an Independent Non-
Executive Director.   

3.4 The Audit Committee should 
oversee integrated reporting.   

The Centre is in the process of institutionalizing Integrated 
Reporting. The Committee oversees the Centre’s 
integrated reporting so as to safeguard the integrity of 
reporting. The Audit Committee also oversees Corporate 
Governance and Financial Reports including the Annual 
Financial Statements.

3.5 The Audit Committee should 
ensure that a combined 
assurance model is applied 
to provide a coordinated 
approach to all assurance 
activities. 

The Committee oversees assurance activities to ensure 
that they are constructed in a coordinated manner. The 
Centre utilizes various lines of assurance approaches; 
management oversees assurance, Internal and External 
Auditors undertakes audits in line with Board approved 
risk-based plans. 

3.6 The Audit Committee should 
satisfy itself of the expertise, 
resources and experience 
of the company’s finance 
function. 

The Centre’s finance function is managed by qualified 
and experienced accountants.

Recruitment of the head of finance is subject to the Audit, 
Finance and Risk Committee’s endorsement.

3.7 The Audit Committee should 
be responsible for overseeing 
of internal audit.   

BNPC’s Internal Audit function reports directly to the 
Board Audit, Finance and Risk Committee. The committee 
reviews and approves internal audit plans. It oversees the 
function’s quality assurance reviews, interrogates Internal 
Audit reports and assesses the effectiveness of the function 
against professional and ethical standards applicable to 
the internal audit practice.

3.8 The Audit Committee should 
be an integral component of 
the risk management process. 

The committee oversees Audit, Finance and Risk 
Management.   
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3.9 The Audit Committee is 
responsible for recommending 
the appointment of the 
external auditor and 
overseeing the external audit 
process.   

The committee recommends to the Board the appointment 
of the Centre’s external auditors. The committee also 
oversees the audit process.

3.10 The Audit Committee should 
report to the Board and 
shareholders on how it has 
discharged its duties.   

The committee formally reports to the Board at least 
every quarter.

Chapter 4: The Governance of Risk

4.1
The Board should be 
responsible for the 
governance of risk.   

The Board, through the Audit, Finance and Risk Committee 
is responsible for overseeing the Centre’s risk management 
programme. It has the ultimate accountability for the 
control and management of organizational risks. 

4.2 The Board should determine 
the levels of risk tolerance.   

The Board, through the Audit, Finance and Risk Committee 
sets levels of risk tolerance and appetite for the Centre.  

4.3 The risk or audit committee 
should assist the Board in 
carrying out risk responsibilities.

The Audit, Finance and Risk Committee has delegated 
authority to oversee risk management.

4.4 The Board should delegate to 
management the responsibility 
to design, implement and 
monitor the risk management 
plan.   

Through the Executive Director, the Board has delegated 
to management the day-to-day responsibility for 
management of risk.   

4.5 The Board should ensure that 
risk assessments are performed 
on a continual basis.  

The Audit, Finance and Risk Committee actively monitors 
the Centre’s risks, which is assessed and managed on a 
continual basis by management. 
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4.6 The Board should ensure 
that the frameworks 
and methodologies are 
implemented to increase the 
probability of anticipating 
unpredictable risks. 

All risks are identified and monitored in line with the Risk 
Management Process.    

The Centre maintains a risk register (Risk Log) of the 
corporate risks.

4.7 The Board should ensure that 
management considers and 
implements appropriate risk 
responses.   

On a quarterly basis, the Audit, Finance and Risk 
Committee peruses Risk Reports indicating identified risks 
and ensures that management closes findings.

4.8 The Board should ensure 
continual risk monitoring by 
management. 

On a quarterly basis, the Board reviews management’s 
progress on the Corporate Risk Log.

4.9 The Board should receive 
assurance regarding the 
effectiveness of the risk 
management process.   

The Audit, Finance and Risk Committee provides the 
Board with assurance on the effectiveness of the risk 
management process by constantly reviewing the results 
thereof, and reporting to the Board.

4.10 The Board should ensure that 
there are processes in place 
enabling complete, timely, 
relevant, accurate and 
accessible risk disclosure to 
stakeholders.  

A Combined Assurance Model exercise is undertaken 
annually and the results are shared with the Board.

Chapter 5: The Governance of Information Technology

5.1 The Board should be 
responsible for Information 
Technology (IT) governance.   

The Board understands the importance, relevance and 
inherent risks in ICT. The Audit, Finance and Risk Committee 
oversees ICT governance. 

5.2 IT should be aligned with the 
performance and sustainability 
objectives of the company.  

The Finance Manager oversees the ICT Function. He sits in 
at all strategic structures of the Centre.
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5.3 The Board should delegate to 
management the responsibility 
for the implementation of an IT 
governance framework.  

The daily management and operations of the ICT function 
is delegated to Management.

5.4 The Board should monitor 
and evaluate significant IT 
investments and expenditure

On a regular basis, management updates the Board 
on the Centre’s ICT activities including investments and 
expenditure.

5.5 IT should form an integral 
part of the company’s risk 
management.  

This is done on an on-going basis.

5.6 The Board should ensure 
that information assets are 
managed effectively.   

Information is kept on an off-site disaster recovery facility, 
with regular backups.

5.7 A risk and audit committee 
should assist the Board in 
carrying out IT responsibilities

The ICT function oversight, has been delegated, by the 
Board to the Audit, Finance and Risk Committee.

Chapter 6: Compliance with Laws, Codes, Rules and Standards
6.1 The Board should ensure that 

the company complies with 
applicable laws and considers 
adherence to non-binding 
rules, codes and standards.   

  

The Audit, Finance and Risk Committee together with the 
Board Secretary review the adequacy and effectiveness 
of the Centre’s procedures to ensure compliance with 
legal and regulatory responsibilities. 

The Board Secretary serves as the Centre’s advisor on 
legal and regulatory matters.

Compliance systems and processes are in place to 
mitigate failure to comply with laws, rules, codes and 
standards. The Centre is in the process of developing 
a Compliance Framework which aspires to ensure that 
controls are standardized across the organisation. There  
is a Legal Register in place.
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Chapter 6: Compliance with Laws, Codes, Rules and Standards
6.1 The Board should ensure that 

the company complies with 
applicable laws and considers 
adherence to non-binding 
rules, codes and standards.   

  

The Audit, Finance and Risk Committee together with the 
Board Secretary review the adequacy and effectiveness 
of the Centre’s procedures to ensure compliance with 
legal and regulatory responsibilities. 

The Board Secretary serves as the Centre’s advisor on 
legal and regulatory matters.

Compliance systems and processes are in place to 
mitigate failure to comply with laws, rules, codes and 
standards. The Centre is in the process of developing 
a Compliance Framework which aspires to ensure that 
controls are standardized across the organisation. There  
is a Legal Register in place.

6.2 The Board and each individual 
director should have a working 
understanding of the effect 
of the applicable laws, rules, 
codes and standards on the 
company and its business.   

All Directors are inducted and appraised on various 
applicable rules, codes, standards and company policies 
and strategies, upon their appointments.

The Board, through the office of the Board Secretary, is 
regularly appraised on latest trends and principles of good 
corporate governance and trained on the company and 
its business

6.3 Compliance risk should 
form an integral part of the 
company’s risk management 
process.

Compliance is an identified significant risk and addressed 
as part of the risk management process.

6.4 The Board should delegate 
to management the 
implementation of an effective 
compliance framework and 
processes.  

The Centre is in the process of developing a Compliance 
Framework which aspires to ensure that compliance 
controls are standardized across the organisation.   

Chapter 7: Internal Audit
7.1 The Board should ensure that 

there is an effective risk-based 
internal audit. 

The Centre’s internal audit is performed using a risk based 
approach.  The internal audit reports and progress on 
findings thereof on a regular basis. 

7.2 Internal audit should follow 
a risk-based approach to its 
plan. 

A risk-based approach is followed in Internal Audit Plans.   

7.3 Internal audit should provide 
a written assessment of 
the effectiveness of the 
company’s system of internal 
control and risk management.  

A written assessment of the effectiveness of the Centre’s 
system of internal control and risk management is 
provided to the Board, through the Audit, Finance and 
Risk Committee, on an annual basis. 
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7.4 The audit committee should 
be responsible for overseeing 
internal audit.   

The Audit, Finance and Risk Committee is responsible for 
overseeing the Internal Audit. During 2020/21 the Centre 
appointed a service provider to conduct an independent 
quality review of the Internal Audit. Such review will 
establish the extent of compliance with standards as set 
by the Institute of  Internal Auditors and also establish the 
level to which the BNPC Internal Audit Function satisfies 
stakeholder expectations.

7.5 Internal audit should be 
strategically positioned to 
achieve its objectives.   

The Centre’s Internal Audit function is strategically 
positioned; reporting directly to the Board through the 
Audit, Finance and Risk Committee and to the Executive 
Director for daily operations.

Chapter 8: Governing Stakeholder Relations
8.1 The Board should appreciate 

that stakeholders’ perceptions 
affect a company’s 
reputation.   

  

The Centre dedicates time and effort to developing 
and maintaining positive relationships with its significant 
stakeholders.

The Centre is in the process of developing a Stakeholder 
Engagement framework, to further strengthen stakeholder 
relations.

8.2 The Board should delegate to 
management to proactively 
deal with stakeholder 
relationships.    

Management is responsible for managing and maintaining 
stakeholder relationships.

8.3 The Board should strive to 
achieve the appropriate 
balance between its various 
stakeholder groupings, in the 
best interests of the company. 

The Board has responsibility for ensuring that transparent 
engagement ensues with stakeholders. 

8.4 Companies should ensure 
the equitable treatment of 
shareholders.   

BNPC has a single shareholder in Botswana Government 
with the relationship being managed through a 
shareholder compact, reviewed and updated on a 
regular basis.
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engagement ensues with stakeholders. 

8.4 Companies should ensure 
the equitable treatment of 
shareholders.   

BNPC has a single shareholder in Botswana Government 
with the relationship being managed through a 
shareholder compact, reviewed and updated on a 
regular basis.

8.5 Transparent and effective 
communication with 
stakeholders is essential for 
building and maintaining their 
trust and confidence.

The Centre has a comprehensive stakeholder 
engagement process. 

8.6 The Board should ensure 
that disputes are resolved as 
effectively, efficiently and 
expeditiously as possible.

The Board ensures that disputes are resolved effectively 
and expeditiously.

Chapter 9: Integrated Reporting and Disclosures
9.1 The Board should ensure the 

integrity of the company’s 
integrated report.   

The Financial and Corporate Governance performance 
of the Centre is reported on an annual basis by the Board, 
and captured in the Annual Report.

The Centre is moving towards enhancing communication 
about how its strategy, governance, performance and 
future prospects are envisioned to create improved 
shareholder value over the short, medium and long term, 
in its annual reporting.

9.2 Sustainability reporting 
and disclosure should be 
integrated with the company’s 
financial reporting.   

Having not previously adopted integrated reporting in its 
annual reporting, the Centre is now moving towards full 
integrated reporting, which shall include for disclosure on 
the organization’s environmental and social performance, 
as part of the sustainability reporting and disclosures.

9.3 Sustainability reporting 
and disclosure should be 
independently assured.   

Currently, the Centre has not adopted integrated 
reporting.

Going forward, once fully institutionalised, the sustainability 
reporting shall be subject to independent assurance.  
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AUDIT, FINANCE AND RISK COMMITTEE 
(AFRC)

The AFRC assists the BNPC Board in its oversight 
role by managing the audit, financial, 
operational, business continuity and corporate 
risk facets of the Centre.

In this regard, the BNPC AFRC is responsible 
for monitoring the development of financial 
information; the effectiveness of internal controls 
and the risk management system; and external 
evaluation of annual financial statements by 
External Auditors, as well as the independence 
of the said External Auditors.

THE INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The traditional operation of the internal audit 
function is usually structured across ‘The Three 
Lines of Defence’ model. In the Three Lines of 
defence model, management control is the first 
line of defence in risk management, the various 
risk control and compliance over- sight functions 
established by management are the second 
line of defence, and independent assurance 
provided by Internal Audit Function is the third. 
This model is used by many entities to define 
and control the risk management environment, 
and to provide assurance to the Board, BAC, 
CEO, senior executives and stakeholders about 
effective governance.

However, the modern internal audit function has 
a far greater role of providing assurance on new 
and emerging risks such as cyber security, culture 
and data analytic. Given its understanding 
of practices across the organisation gained 
through ongoing audit reviews, it is well-placed to 

provide a perspective on status of affairs across 
the organisation, based on the practices and 
behaviours observed. Therefore, if well-resourced 
and availed with the necessary platforms, it can 
grow from assurance provider to problem solver; 
or even beyond that, to an insight generator and 
a trusted advisor.

Enterprise Risk Management

“Risk comes with the territory 
when you are breaking 
new ground.  Learn how 
to evaluate and mitigate 
these risks rather than take 
away people’s power and 
autonomy.” 

― Leena Patel
Risk management is an increasingly important 
business driver and stakeholders have become 
much more concerned. An enterprise-wide 
approach to risk management enables 
an organisation to consider the potential 
impact of all types of risks on all processes, 
activities, stakeholders, products, and services. 
Implementing a comprehensive approach 
to risk management results in an organisation 
benefiting from what is often referred to as the 
“upside of risk”.

BNPC has adopted the King III Code of Corporate 
Governance, as best practice, whilst taking due 
cognizance of the limitations imposed by the 

Risk Management
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BNPC Act (1993).  One of the requirements 
in the Code is to establish an effective risk 
management framework.  In recognition of the 
importance and the serious implications of risk 
management to the achievement of strategic 
objectives, BNPC developed its Board Charter 
to set the tone for management of risk by the 
Centre.

Today’s Boards are faced with the challenge 
of effectively overseeing organisations’ 
enterprise-wide risk management in ways 
that balances managing the risks while also 
adding value to the organisation.  Boards, 
along with other stakeholders, have been 
under increased focus due to the widely held 
perception that organisations encountered 
risks during the 2008 financial crisis for which 
they were not adequately prepared.  The 
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic has only 
served to add another layer to the challenges 
faced by Boards.

The BNPC Board has a fundamental role to play 
in the management of risk.  The Board through 
its Audit, Finance and Risk Committee (AFRC) 
is responsible for addressing the corporate 
governance requirements of risk management 
and monitoring the Centre’s performance 
regarding risk management.  During the period 
under review, the Board, through the AFRC, 
consistently reviewed the Centre’s Risk Register 
on a quarterly basis, to determine the material 
risks to which the Centre was exposed to and 

considered management’s comments on the 
strategy and interventions for managing those 
risks.

One of the primary responsibilities of BNPC is 
to manage risks associated with successful 
operations of the Centre.  The BNPC Risk 
Management Policy ensures that risk 
management is incorporated in all aspects 
of the business operations, including strategic 
planning, development of Centres’ initiatives 
and implementation of new products, services, 
systems, and processes.

The Centre’s Risk Management Committee 
constitutes the Executive Management 
Committee, chaired by the Executive Director.  
The committee is responsible for overseeing the 
overall implementation of risk management 
within the Centre, providing an independent 
and objective view of the risks to ensure 
that they receive the appropriate degree of 
prominence and management’s attention 
within the Centre.

Each of the Centre’s departments and 
divisions maintain a departmental risk register, 
which are reviewed by the Risk Management 
Committee on a regular basis.  These are 
consolidated and prioritised into the Corporate 
Risk Register, in alignment with the Centre’s risk 
appetite and heat-map.

79



FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Botswana National Productivity Centre Annual Report80



FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

81



Professor Dorothy Mpabanga - Board Chairperson - Appointed on 01 April 2021
Mr Norman Moleele                     - Deputy Chairperson
Mr Bonnie Jim - Appointed on 01 April 2021
Dr Kealeboga Bojosi - Appointed on 01 April 2021
Mr Madongo Direng - Appointed on 01 April 2021
Mr Molefi Keaja - Appointed on 01 April 2021
Mr Johannes Tshukudu - Appointed on 01 April 2021
Professor Agreement Lathia  Jotia - Appointed on 01 April 2021
Mr Martin Gabobake - Appointed on 01 April 2021
Mr Samuel Rathedi - Appointed on 01 April 2021
Mr Nelson Letshwene - End of tenure on 31 March 2021
Dr Moreetsi Thobega - End of tenure on 31 March 2021
Ms Grace Siamisang - End of tenure on 31 March 2021
Mr Keeper Morgan - End of tenure on 31 March 2021
Ms Maipelo Motshwane - End of tenure on 31 March 2021
Mr Jacob Momene - End of tenure on 31 March 2021
Mr Thusang Butale - End of tenure on 31 March 2021
Mr Boniface Tsheko
Dr Tinaye Mmusi

Mr Christopher M Diswai

CONTENTS PAGE                                                                             PAGE

Botswana National Productivity Centre General Information  83

Directors' responsibility statement for the financial statements  84

Independent auditor's report       85

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income  88

Statement of financial position      89

Statement of changes in reserves      90

Statement of cash flows       91

Summary of significant accounting policies     92

Notes to the financial statements      106

BOTSWANA NATIONAL PRODUCTIVITY CENTRE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2021

Botswana National Productivity Centre Annual Report82



Professor Dorothy Mpabanga - Board Chairperson - Appointed on 01 April 2021
Mr Norman Moleele                     - Deputy Chairperson
Mr Bonnie Jim - Appointed on 01 April 2021
Dr Kealeboga Bojosi - Appointed on 01 April 2021
Mr Madongo Direng - Appointed on 01 April 2021
Mr Molefi Keaja - Appointed on 01 April 2021
Mr Johannes Tshukudu - Appointed on 01 April 2021
Professor Agreement Lathia  Jotia - Appointed on 01 April 2021
Mr Martin Gabobake - Appointed on 01 April 2021
Mr Samuel Rathedi - Appointed on 01 April 2021
Mr Nelson Letshwene - End of tenure on 31 March 2021
Dr Moreetsi Thobega - End of tenure on 31 March 2021
Ms Grace Siamisang - End of tenure on 31 March 2021
Mr Keeper Morgan - End of tenure on 31 March 2021
Ms Maipelo Motshwane - End of tenure on 31 March 2021
Mr Jacob Momene - End of tenure on 31 March 2021
Mr Thusang Butale - End of tenure on 31 March 2021
Mr Boniface Tsheko
Dr Tinaye Mmusi

Mr Christopher M Diswai

CONTENTS PAGE                                                                             PAGE

Botswana National Productivity Centre General Information  83

Directors' responsibility statement for the financial statements  84

Independent auditor's report       85

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income  88

Statement of financial position      89

Statement of changes in reserves      90

Statement of cash flows       91

Summary of significant accounting policies     92

Notes to the financial statements      106

BOTSWANA NATIONAL PRODUCTIVITY CENTRE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2021

Botswana National Productivity Centre Annual Report82

BUSINESS OPERATION

Promoting increased productivity, improving standards of management and labour management 
relations and generally stimulating productivity consciousness in Botswana. The Botswana 
National Productivity Centre ("Centre") is a parastatal organisation which has been legislated 
under Botswana National Productivity Centre. Act 1993 and domiciled in Botswana. 

REGISTERED ADDRESS
Plot 21222/21254                                                                                                                                       
Giraffe Road                                                                                                                                                    
Gaborone

AUDITORS
Deloitte and Touche

BOARD SECRETARY
Ms Tswelelo Kebatlile

BANKERS
Standard Chartered Bank Botswana Limited
Stanbic Bank Botswana Limited

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Non- Executive Directors
Professor Dorothy Mpabanga - Board Chairperson - Appointed on 01 April 2021
Mr Norman Moleele                     - Deputy Chairperson
Mr Bonnie Jim - Appointed on 01 April 2021
Dr Kealeboga Bojosi - Appointed on 01 April 2021
Mr Madongo Direng - Appointed on 01 April 2021
Mr Molefi Keaja - Appointed on 01 April 2021
Mr Johannes Tshukudu - Appointed on 01 April 2021
Professor Agreement Lathia  Jotia - Appointed on 01 April 2021
Mr Martin Gabobake - Appointed on 01 April 2021
Mr Samuel Rathedi - Appointed on 01 April 2021
Mr Nelson Letshwene - End of tenure on 31 March 2021
Dr Moreetsi Thobega - End of tenure on 31 March 2021
Ms Grace Siamisang - End of tenure on 31 March 2021
Mr Keeper Morgan - End of tenure on 31 March 2021
Ms Maipelo Motshwane - End of tenure on 31 March 2021
Mr Jacob Momene - End of tenure on 31 March 2021
Mr Thusang Butale - End of tenure on 31 March 2021
Mr Boniface Tsheko
Dr Tinaye Mmusi

Mr Christopher M Diswai

Executive Directors

BOTSWANA NATIONAL PRODUCTIVITY CENTRE
GENERAL INFORMATION
31 March 2021

83



Botswana National Productivity Centre Annual Report84



     

 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BOTSWANA NATIONAL PRODUCTIVITY CENTRE  
PURSUANT TO SECTION 16(3) OF THE NATIONAL PRODUCTIVITY CENTRE ACT, 1993 
 
Qualified Opinion  
 
We have audited the financial statements of Botswana National Productivity Centre, set out on pages 6 to 33 which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement 
of changes in reserves and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, including a summary of significant accounting policies 
and notes to the financial statements. 
 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Centre as at 31 March 
2021, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are independent of the Centre in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International 
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code), together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Botswana, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Key Audit Matter  
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial 
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
 
Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in the audit 
 
De-recognition of property 
 
In the current year the entity entered into an agreement 
with the Government of Botswana for the lease of a property 
for a duration of 50 years. The same property was 
recognised incorrectly in the financial statements in the prior 
year at a carrying value of P52 300 000, the financial 
statements have been restated to correct the error. 
 
Due to the complexity involved and the materiality of the 
property, the accounting treatment related to the de-
recognition of the property is considered a Key Audit Matter. 
 
 

 
To address this risk, we performed various procedures, including 
the following: 
 
• Reviewed management’s proposed accounting treatment against 

the requirements of IFRS. 
• Evaluated the design and implementation of controls related to 

the de-recognition of the property. 
• We tested the accuracy and completeness of the journal entries 

passed to de-recognise the property 
• Reviewed the appropriateness of disclosures in the financial 

statements. 
 
The risk was appropriately addressed. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BOTSWANA NATIONAL PRODUCTIVITY CENTRE  
PURSUANT TO SECTION 16(3) OF THE NATIONAL PRODUCTIVITY CENTRE ACT, 1993 (CONTINUED) 
 
Emphasis of Matter 
 
We draw attention to the matter below. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 
 
Note 20 to the consolidated and separate financial statements indicates that the previous financial statements for the year ended 31 
March 2020, have been restated. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
Pursuant to section 16(3) of the Botswana National Productivity Centre Act, Financial Reporting Act, 2010 we report on the following: 
 
• We have received all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the 

performance of our duties; 
 
• The accounts and related records of the Centre have been properly kept; 
 
• The Centre has complied with all the financial provisions of the Act with which it is the duty of the Centre to comply with; and 
 
• The statement of accounts prepared by the Centre was prepared on a basis consistent with that of the preceding year and 

represents a true and fair view of the transactions and financial affairs of the Centre. 
 
Other Information 
 
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the directors’ responsibility and statement 
of approval of the Financial Statements, and the Detailed Statement of Financial Performance. The other information does not 
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 
 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express an audit opinion or any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.  
 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  
 
If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to 
report in this regard. 
 
Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements  
 
The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with International 
Public Sector Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the  financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Centre’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the 
directors either intend to liquidate the Centre or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
The directors are responsible for overseeing the Centre’s financial reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a 
high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout 
the audit. We also: 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BOTSWANA NATIONAL PRODUCTIVITY CENTRE  
PURSUANT TO SECTION 16(3) OF THE NATIONAL PRODUCTIVITY CENTRE ACT, 1993 (CONTINUED) 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued) 
 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 

perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control.  

 
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Centre’s internal control.  
 
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 

disclosures made by the directors.  
 
• Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence 

obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Centre’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Centre to cease to continue as a going concern.  

 
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 

financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
 

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit 
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Deloitte & Touche                                           Gaborone 
Certified Auditors                                                   17 November 2021 
Practicing Member: F C Els (CAP 007 2021)  
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*Notes 2021 Restated  2020

P P
Revenue
Grant income 1 34 559 760 38 286 655   
Sale of services 1 3 186 132 3 721 241     

37 745 892   42 007 896   
Other operating income
Other income 1 373 757 483 983       
Capital grants transferred to income on disposal of assets 11.1 - 368 631       
Amortisation of capital grants 11.1 962 666 1 059 270     

1 336 423 1 911 884     
Administrative expenses 1 (44 597 681) (45 014 057) 
Operating deficit 1 (5 515 366) (1 094 277)   
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Deficit for the year (5 044 951) (485 939)      

Other comprehensive income - -              
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Total comprehensive loss for the year (5 044 951) (485 939)      

* Refer to note 20 for the restatement details.
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* *Notes 2021 Restated  2020 Restated  2019
P P PASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 7 6 116 349    6 211 920   6 647 991   
Right of use assets 16 3 737 361    974 426      -            

9 853 710    7 186 346   6 647 991   

Current assets
Inventories 8 451 434       351 939      256 337      
Trade and other receivables 9 1 377 258    1 475 945   2 226 708   
Cash and cash equivalents 10 23 069 173  23 025 680 25 550 259 

24 897 865  24 853 564 28 033 304 

Total assets 34 751 575  32 039 910 34 681 295 

FUNDS AND LIABILITIES
Reserves
Revaluation reserve 12 4 155 152    4 155 152   4 155 152   
Accumulated surplus 9 485 417    14 530 368 15 016 307 

13 640 569  18 685 520 19 171 459 

Non-Current liabilities
Lease liabilities 16 3 231 965    619 766      -            
Capital grants 11 1 204 523    2 167 189   3 595 090   

4 436 488    2 786 955   3 595 090   
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 13 14 478 546  8 512 407   11 398 914 
Projects grants 15 1 624 665    1 671 097   515 832      
Lease liabilities 16 571 307       383 931      -             

16 674 518  10 567 435 11 914 746 

Total funds and liabilities 34 751 575  32 039 910 34 681 295 

* Refer to note 20 for the restatement details.
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Revaluation Accumulated
Notes reserve surplus Total funds

P P P
Restated -For the year ended 31 March 2019
Balance at 1 April 2018 3 708 708   11 278 399    14 987 107 
Transitional adjustment -            (152 724)       (152 724)    
Restated total comprehensive income 7 580 385   3 903 784 11 484 169 
Restated balance at 31 March 2019 11 289 093  15 029 459    26 318 552 

Restated total comprehensive income 446 444      3 890 632      4 337 076  
Restated balance at 31 March 2019 4 155 152   15 016 307    19 171 459 

Restated - For the year ended 31 March 2020
Restated balance at 1 April 2019 4 155 152   15 016 307 19 171 459 
Restated total comprehensive loss -             (485 939) (485 939)    
Restated balance at 31 March 2020 4 155 152   14 530 368    18 685 520 

For the year ended 31 March 2021
Restated Balance at 1 April 2020 4 155 152   14 530 368    18 685 520 
Total comprehensive loss -             (5 044 951)    (5 044 951) 
Balance at 31 March 2021 4 155 152   9 485 417      13 640 569 

BOTSWANA NATIONAL PRODUCTIVITY CENTRE
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES
for the year ended 31 March 2021

*Notes 2021 Restated   2020
P P

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating deficit (5 515 366)  (1 094 277)  
Adjustment for non-cash items:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 7 1 092 923   1 153 416   
Depreciation of right of use assets 16 427 844      389 770      
Amortisation of capital grants 11.1 (962 666)     (1 059 270)  
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment -             63 434        
Capital grants transferred to income on disposal of assets 11.1 -             (368 631)     

(4 957 265)  (915 558)     
Changes in working capital
Increase in inventories (99 495)       (95 602)       
Decrease in trade and other receivables 98 687        750 763      
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and other payables 5 966 139   (2 886 507)  
(Increase)/decrease in projects grants (46 432)       1 155 265   
Net cash generated from/ (used in) operating activities 961 634      (1 991 639)  

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 7 (997 352)     (1 085 976)  
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment -             305 197      
Interest received 3 580 117      697 380      
Net cash used in investing activities (417 235)     (83 399)       

Cash flows from financing activities
Payments of principal portion of lease liabilities 16 (391 203)     (360 499)     
Interest on lease liabilities 16 (109 702)     (88 673)       
Net cash used in financing activities (500 905)     (449 172)     

Net movement in cash and cash equivalents 43 493        (2 524 210)  
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 23 025 680  25 550 259  
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 3 -                (369)           
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 10 23 069 173  23 025 680  

* Refer to note  20  for the  restatement details.
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Decrease in trade and other receivables 98 687        750 763      
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and other payables 5 966 139   (2 886 507)  
(Increase)/decrease in projects grants (46 432)       1 155 265   
Net cash generated from/ (used in) operating activities 961 634      (1 991 639)  

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 7 (997 352)     (1 085 976)  
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment -             305 197      
Interest received 3 580 117      697 380      
Net cash used in investing activities (417 235)     (83 399)       

Cash flows from financing activities
Payments of principal portion of lease liabilities 16 (391 203)     (360 499)     
Interest on lease liabilities 16 (109 702)     (88 673)       
Net cash used in financing activities (500 905)     (449 172)     

Net movement in cash and cash equivalents 43 493        (2 524 210)  
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 23 025 680  25 550 259  
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 3 -                (369)           
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 10 23 069 173  23 025 680  

* Refer to note  20  for the  restatement details.
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BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The financial statements, which assume a going concern basis, have been prepared using 
the accrual basis of accounting, except for cash flow information. Furthermore, the financial 
statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the revaluation of 
residential property and incorporate the following principal accounting policies which have been 
consistently followed in all material respects, and comply with operative International Financial 
Reporting Standards.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

In the current year, the Centre has adopted all the new and revised Standards issued by the 
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the International Financial Interpretations 
Committee (IFRIC) of the IASB that are relevant to its operations and effective for annual reporting 
periods beginning on 1 April 2020. There has been no significant changes to the financial results 
of the Centre arising from the adoption of the revised standards and new interpretations. Other 
than improved presentation and disclosures, the adoption of these standards did not resulted in 
changes to the entities accounting policies.

Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year Effective Date - 
Annual periods 

Standard/Interpretation beginning on/after

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform: Amendments to 
IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7

1 January 2020

1 January 2020Definition of a business - Amendments to IFRS 3
Presentation of Financial Statements: Disclosure initiative
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and 
Errors: Disclosure initiative

1 January 2020

1 January 2020

The impact of these standards on the Centre's financial results is not material.

The Centre has chosen not to early adopt the following standards and interpretations, 
which have been published and are mandatory for the Centre’s accounting periods beginning 
on or after 01 April 2020 or later periods:

Standards and interpretations not yet effective Effective Date - 
Annual periods 

Standard/Interpretation
beginning on/after

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current - Amendment to IAS 1 1 January 2023
COVID-19 - Related Rent Concessions - Amendment to IFRS 16 1 January 2020

It is unlikely that this standards will have material impact on the Centre's financial results.

Standards and interpretations not yet effective or relevant Effective Date - 
Annual periods 

Standard/Interpretation beginning on/after

Amendment to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 4 and 
IFRS 16 - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 1 January 2021
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023
Annual Improvement to IFRS Standards 2018-2020: Amendments to IFRS 1 1 January 2022
Reference to the Conceptual Framework: Amendments to IFRS 3 1 January 2022
Annual Improvement to IFRS Standards 2018-2020: Amendments to IFRS 9 1 January 2022
Property, plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use: 
Amendments to IAS 16

1 January 2022
Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract: Amendments to IAS 37

1 January 2022

Annual Improvement to IFRS Standards 2018-2020: Amendments to IAS 41
1 January 2022
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Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year Effective Date - 
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1 January 2020

1 January 2020Definition of a business - Amendments to IFRS 3
Presentation of Financial Statements: Disclosure initiative
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and 
Errors: Disclosure initiative

1 January 2020

1 January 2020

The impact of these standards on the Centre's financial results is not material.

The Centre has chosen not to early adopt the following standards and interpretations, 
which have been published and are mandatory for the Centre’s accounting periods beginning 
on or after 01 April 2020 or later periods:

Standards and interpretations not yet effective Effective Date - 
Annual periods 

Standard/Interpretation
beginning on/after

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current - Amendment to IAS 1 1 January 2023
COVID-19 - Related Rent Concessions - Amendment to IFRS 16 1 January 2020

It is unlikely that this standards will have material impact on the Centre's financial results.

Standards and interpretations not yet effective or relevant Effective Date - 
Annual periods 

Standard/Interpretation beginning on/after

Amendment to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 4 and 
IFRS 16 - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 1 January 2021
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023
Annual Improvement to IFRS Standards 2018-2020: Amendments to IFRS 1 1 January 2022
Reference to the Conceptual Framework: Amendments to IFRS 3 1 January 2022
Annual Improvement to IFRS Standards 2018-2020: Amendments to IFRS 9 1 January 2022
Property, plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use: 
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1 January 2022
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These standards will have no material impact on the Centre's financial results.

The below notes sets out the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial 
statements.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Measurement Methods

Amortised cost and effective interest rate

The amortised cost is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial 
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the 
effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount 
and, for financial assets, adjusted for any loss allowance.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts 
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a 
financial asset (i.e.its amortised cost before any impairment allowance) or to the amortised cost of a 
financial liability. The calculation does not consider expected credit losses and includes transaction 
costs, premiums or discounts and fees and points paid or received that are integral to the effective 
interest rate, such as origination fees.

When the Centre revises the estimates of future cash flows, the carrying amount of the respective 
financial assets or financial liability is adjusted to reflect the new estimate discounted using the original 
effective interest rate.
Any changes are recognised in profit or loss.

Interest income

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of 
financial assets and recognised on an accrual basis.
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Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the entity becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument.

At initial recognition, the Centre measures a financial asset or financial liability at its fair value plus 
or minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, 
transaction costs that are incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the 
financial asset or financial liability, such as fees and commissions. Transaction costs of financial 
assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Immediately after initial recognition, an expected credit loss allowance (ECL) is recognised for 
financial assets measured at amortised cost which results in an accounting loss being recognised 
in profit or loss when an asset is newly originated.

When the fair value of financial assets and liabilities differs from the transaction price on initial 
recognition, the Centre recognises the difference as follows:

a) When the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical 
asset or liability (i.e. a Level 1 input) or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from 
observable markets, the difference is recognised as a gain or loss.

b) In all other cases, the difference is deferred and the timing of recognition of deferred day one 
profit or loss is determined individually. It is either amortised over the life of the instrument, deferred 
until the instrument’s fair value can be determined using market observable inputs, or realised 
through settlement.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial assets, financial liabilities or as equity 
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity 
after deducting all of its liabilities. The Centre's equity comprises accumulated funds.

The Centre classifies its financial assets at amortised cost. The classification requirements for debt 
instruments measured at amortised cost are described below:

Debt instruments

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability from the 
issuer’s perspective, such as loans, government and corporate bonds and trade receivables 
purchased from clients in

factoring arrangements without recourse.
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Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments depend on:

i. the Centre’s business model for managing the asset; and

ii. the cash flow characteristics of the asset.

Based on these factors, the Centre classifies its debt instruments at amortised cost.

Business model

The business model reflects how the Centre manages the assets in order to generate cash flows. 
That is, whether the Centre’s objective is solely to collect the contractual cash flows from the assets 
or is to collect both the contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets. If 
neither of these is applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for trading purposes), then the financial 
assets are classified as part of ‘other’ business model and measured at fair value.

Factors considered by the Centre in determining the business model for a group of assets include 
past experience on how the cash flows for these assets were collected, how the asset’s performance 
is evaluated and reported to key management personnel, how risks are assessed and managed 
and how managers are compensated.

SPPI

Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or to collect contractual 
cash flows and sell, the Centre assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash flows represent 
solely payments of principal and interest (the ‘SPPI test’). In making this assessment, the Centre 
considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement i.e. 
interest includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks 
and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual 
terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, 
the related financial asset is classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The Centre reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those 
assets changes. The reclassification takes place from the start of the first reporting period following 
the change. Such changes are expected to be very infrequent and none occurred during the 
period.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are amounts due from customers for services performed in the ordinary 
course of operation. Trade receivables are recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at 
amortised cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term, highly liquid 
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investments readily convertible to cash and subject to insignificant risk of loss of value.

Cash and cash equivalents are measured at amortised cost.

Impairment of financial assets

The Centre recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) on investments in debt 
instruments that are measured at amortised cost which include lease receivables, trade and 
other receivables as well as cash and cash equivalents. The amount of expected credit losses 
is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the 
respective financial instrument.

The Centre recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) on investments in debt 
instruments that are measured at amortised cost which include lease receivables, trade and 
other receivables as well as cash and cash equivalents. The amount of expected credit losses 
is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the 
respective financial instrument.

The Centre always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables, contract assets and lease 
receivables. The expected credit losses on these financial assets are estimated using simplified 
ECL model based on the provision matrix. The ECL model takes into account Centre’s historical 
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic 
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions 
at the reporting date. Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all 
possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Centre derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from 
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Centre neither transfers nor retains substantially all the 
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Centre recognises 
its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the 
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised 
in profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial 
liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is 
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points 
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paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other 
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a 
shorter period, to the amortised cost of a financial liability.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Centre derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Centre’s obligations are 
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial 
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

REVENUE

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised services to customers in an amount that 
reflects the consideration the Centre expects to receive in exchange for the services.

Nature of services and timing of revenue recognition

The Centre provides consulting and training services. In addition, the Centre provides facilities for 
rental purposes which are covered by IFRS 16.

Revenue is recognised over time or at a specific point in time depending on the nature of the 
performance obligations embedded in the contract. Revenue recognition follows a five step model 
framework listed below:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

Performance obligations are discharged either at a specific point in time or over time and therefore 
influence the timing and recognition of revenue. Revenue from the two product steams above are 
recognised at a specific point in time or over time depending on the nature of training or consulting 
work being rendered. The timing of revenue recognition often differs from contract payment 
schedules, resulting in revenue that has been earned but not billed. These amounts are included 
in unbilled receivables also known as contract assets. Amounts billed in accordance with customer 
contracts, but not yet earned, are recorded and presented as part of deferred revenue also known 
as contract liability.

Sale of services

Revenue from sale of services such as consultancy, course fees, rental for accommodation and 

BOTSWANA NATIONAL PRODUCTIVITY CENTRE
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
31 March 2020

97



conference facilities is recognised as it accrues unless collectability is in doubt.

Interest Income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. When a loan and receivable 
is impaired, the Centre reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the 
estimated future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of the instrument, 
and continues unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired loan and 
receivables is recognised using the original effective interest rate.

Rental income

Payments received under operating leases are credited to the statement of comprehensive 
income on a straightline basis over the period of the lease.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

All property, plant and equipment except for residential property are included at historical cost 
less accumulated depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable 
to the acquisition of the items.

Residential property is shown at fair value, based on periodic valuations by external independent 
valuers. The property is valued at least every three years. Any accumulated depreciation at the 
date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset, and the net 
amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.

Increase in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of residential property is credited to other 
comprehensive income and shown as revaluation reserve in statement of changes in reserves. 
Decrease that offsets previous

increases of the same assets are charged against fair value and other reserves; all other decreases 
are charged to the income statement. The revaluation surplus included in equity in respect of an 
item of property, plant and equipment is transferred directly to the accumulated surplus account 
when the asset is derecognised.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, 
as appropriate,

only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 
Centre and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are 
charged to the statement of comprehensive income during the financial period in which they 
are incurred.

Depreciation is charged using straight-line method so as to write off the depreciable amount 
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of the assets, except on work in progress, over their estimated useful lives, to estimated residual 
values. Where significant parts of an item have different useful lives to the item itself, these parts 
are depreciated over their estimated useful lives. The methods of depreciation, useful lives and 
residual values are reviewed annually, with the effect of any change in estimates accounted for 
prospectively.

The following methods and rates were used during the period to depreciate property, plant and 
equipment to estimated residual values:

Lease Improvements                20 years

Plant and machinery               4-10 years

Furniture and fixtures                6 years

Motor vehicles                          10-14 years

Office equipment                    4 years

IT equipment                             4 years

Residential properties              50 years

Library books                             4 years

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset 
and is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

At each reporting date, the Centre reviews the carrying amount of its tangible and intangible assets 
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If 
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine 
the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount 
of an individual asset, the Centre estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to 
which the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its 
carrying amount, its carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are 
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating-
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount. This is done so that the increased 
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no 
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impairment loss been recognised in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in 
the statement of comprehensive income.

As a minimum, management considers the existence of the following external and internal 
indicators at the end of each reporting period date which individually or collectively may indicate 
impairment on non-financial assets.

External sources of information

• An unexpected significant decline in market value of an asset.

• Significant changes with an adverse effect on the Centre have taken place during the period, 
or are expected to take place in the near future, in the extent to which an asset is used or is 
expected to be used.

• Market interest rates or other market rates of return on investments have increased during the 
period, and those increases are likely to affect the discount rate used in calculating an asset's 
value in use and decrease the asset's recoverable amount materially.

Internal sources of information

• Evidence is available of obsolescence or physical damage of an asset.

• Significant changes with an adverse effect on the Centre have taken place during the period, 
or are expected to take place in the near future, in the extent to which, or manner in which, an 
asset is used or is expected to be used.

• Evidence is available from internal reporting that indicates that the economic performance of 
an asset is, or will be, worse than expected.

INVENTORIES

Inventories consist of office consumables and are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable 
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average costing method.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are assistance by government in the form of transfers of resources to an entity 
in return for past or future compliance with certain conditions relating to the operating activities 
of the Centre.

Government grants comprise funds received from the Ministry of Employment, Labour, Productivity 
and Skills Development in respect of the recurrent expenditure of the entity. Funds received 
and used to acquire items of property, plant and equipment are deferred as capital grants 
and subsequently amortised into government grants over the useful lives of the related items of 
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property, plant and equipment. The funds due from the Ministry of Employment, Labour, Productivity 
and Skills Development are recognised once the budget has been approved and confirmation of 
the approved grant is received by the Centre.

PROJECT GRANTS

Project grants relate to grants received from the Government of Botswana for specific projects. 
These are deferred and included in current liabilities. The related expenditure is netted off against 
the project grant funds received. Expenditure funded from the Centre's retained earnings that is 
not recoverable from the Government of Botswana is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

Functional and Presentation Currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the entity operates (The functional currency’). The financial statements are 
presented in Botswana Pula, which is the Centre’s functional and the presentation currency.

Transactions and Balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange 
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from 
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement. Such monetary assets 
and liabilities are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the year end.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to cash and cash equivalents are presented in the 
income statement within “finance income or cost”. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are 
presented in the statement of comprehensive income within administration expenses.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

All employees of the Centre, other than contracted staff, are members of a defined contribution 
scheme to which the Centre contributes. Contributions to the scheme are expensed as and when 
incurred and included under staff costs in the statement of comprehensive income. A liability is 
recognised to the extent of any unpaid contributions to the fund managers.

The Centre pays gratuity to contracted staff in accordance with their respective contracts of 
employment.
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RELATED PARTIES

Related parties are defined as those parties:

(a) directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the party:

i. controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the entity;

ii. has an interest in the entity that gives it significant influence over the entity; or

(b) that are members of the key management personnel of the entity or its parent including   
     close members of the family.

All dealings with related parties are transacted on an arms length basis and accordingly included 
in the revenue and expenditure statement.

LEASING

At inception of a contract, the Centre assesses whether a contract is, or containsa lease. A 
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified 
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the 
right to control the use of an identified asset, the Centre uses the definition of a lease in IFRS 16.

As a lessee

At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the 
Centre allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of its 
relative stand-alone prices. The Centre recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the 
lease commencement date. The right-ofuse asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises 
the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the 
commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle 
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, 
less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the 
commencement date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the 
underlying asset to the Centre by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset 
reflects that the Centre will exercise a purchase option. In that case the right-of-use asset will be 
depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined on the same basis 
as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by 
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid 
at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate 
cannot be readily determined, the Centre’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Centre 
uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.
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depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined on the same basis 
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impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid 
at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate 
cannot be readily determined, the Centre’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Centre 
uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.
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The Centre determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining prevailing prime lending rate as 
set by Bank of Botswana at contract commencement date, and where necessary makes certain 
adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease and type of the asset leased.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

• fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

• variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index     
or rate as at the commencement date;

• amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

• the exercise price under a purchase option that the Centre is reasonably certain to exercise,     
lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Centre is reasonably certain to exercise     
an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Centre is         
reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured 
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there 
is a change in the Centre’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value 
guarantee, if the Centre changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or 
termination option or if there is a revised insubstance fixed lease payment.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying 
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced to zero.

As a lessor

At inception, reassessment or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the 
Centre allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their 
relative standalone prices.

When the Centre acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance 
lease or an operating lease. To classify each lease, the Centre makes an overall assessment of 
whether the lease transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the 
underlying asset. If this is the case, then the lease is a finance lease; if not, then it is an operating 
lease. As part of this assessment, the Centre considers certain indicators such as whether the lease 
is for the major part of the economic life of the asset.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, then the Centre applies IFRS 15 to 
allocate the consideration in the contract.

The Centre applies the derecognition and impairment requirements in IFRS 9 to the net investment 
in the lease. The Centre further regularly reviews estimated unguaranteed residual values used in 
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calculating the gross investment in the lease.

The Centre recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term as part of ‘other revenue’.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements and estimates that 
affect the application of the Centre’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates 
are recognised prospectively. The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and 
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of 
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next 
financial year.

Useful Lives of plant and equipment and residual values

The Centre reviews the estimated useful lives of plant and equipment at the end of each 
annual reporting period.

Determination of the lease term

The Centre determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with 
any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, 
or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be 
exercised.

Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance for doubtful debts

The measurement of the expected credit loss allowance (ECL) for financial assets measured at 
amortised cost is an area that requires the use of models and significant assumptions about future 
economic conditions and credit behaviour (e.g. the likelihood of customers defaulting and the 
resulting losses). A number of significant judgements are also required in applying the accounting 
requirements for measuring ECL, such as:

• Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the measurement of ECL; and

• Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL

Revenue from contracts with customers

Contracts with customers often include promises to deliver multiple services. Determining 
whether such bundled services are considered i) distinct performance obligations that should be 
separately recognized, or ii) non-distinct and therefore should be combined with another service 
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and recognized as a combined unit of accounting may require significant judgment. In general, 
the Centre’s professional services are capable of being distinct as they could be performed by third 
party service providers and do not involve significant customisation.

Valuation of property

The Centre recognises property at fair value, based on the periodic valuations by the external 
independent valuers.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line item on the Statement of Financial Position. 
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

• the initial amount of the corresponding lease liability;

• any lease payments made at or before the commencement date;

• any initial direct costs incurred;

• any estimated costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying 
asset or the site on which it is located, when the company incurs an obligation to do so, unless these 
costs are incurred to produce inventories; and

• less any lease incentives received.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the 
underlying asset. However, if a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the 
right-of-use asset reflects that the company expects to exercise a purchase option, the related 
right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. Depreciation starts at the 
commencement date of a lease.

For right-of-use assets which are depreciated over their useful lives, the useful lives are determined 
consistently with items of the same class of property, plant and equipment. Refer to the accounting 
policy for property, plant and equipment for details of useful lives.

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of 
each reporting year. If the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for 
prospectively as a change in accounting estimate. Each part of a right-of-use asset with a cost that 
is significant in relation to the total cost of the asset is depreciated separately.

The depreciation charge for each year is recognised in profit or loss unless it is included in the 
carrying amount of another asset.
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1 OPERATING DEFICIT
The following items have been (credited)/charged in arriving at the operating profit:

2021 Restated 2020
Grant received P P

Government subvention 34 513 328   38 241 920   
Project grants 46 432          44 735          

34 559 760   38 286 655   
Sale of services
Consulting 761 487        594 502        
Course fees 1 281 517     2 190 652     
Accommodation 1 060 000     413 079        
Conference facilities 41 726          329 078 
Project income 41 402          193 930 

3 186 132     3 721 241 
Analysis of revenue
By major product/service lines
Consulting 761 487        594 502        
Training 1 281 517     2 190 652     
Provision of accommodation and conference facilities 1 101 726     742 157 
Project income 41 402          193 930 
Total 3 186 132     3 721 241 

By timing of recognition
Service transferred at a point in time 2 383 243     2 932 809     
Service transferred over time 802 889        788 432 
Total 3 186 132     3 721 241 

Nature of
pe�ormance

Nature of balances obligation
Contract asset (Unbilled revenue) Point in time 17 544          78 768          
Contract asset (Unbilled revenue) Over time 294 737        -              
Contract liability (Deferred revenue) Point in time 312 281        9 850           

Other operating income
Rental income 166 964        294 643        
(Loss)/profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment -              (63 434)        
Other income 206 793        252 774        

373 757        483 983        
Expenses by nature
Auditors' remuneration - Current year 211 994        167 500        

- Prior year 17 739          3 663           
Board expenses 273 001        613 691        
Depreciation - Property, Plant and Equipment 1 092 923     1 153 416     
Depreciation - Right of use assets 427 844        389 770        
Hire of equipment 365 618        660 059        
Impairment of receivables -               268 309        
Remuneration paid to directors and key management 7 360 242     7 239 252     
Repairs and maintenance 777 787        1 068 086     
Staff cost (Note 2) 26 077 821   25 460 851   
Project expenses 2 175 618     209 474        
Insurance 655 172        626 146        
Travel 89 200          739 444        
Computer expenses 240 281        163 745        
Utilities 654 775        948 813        
Other expenses 4 177 666     5 301 838     
Total cost of selling and administrative expenses 44 597 681   45 014 057   

BOTSWANA NATIONAL PRODUCTIVITY CENTRE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2021

2021 2020
2 STAFF COSTS P P

Salaries and wages   22 772 329   22 246 828 
Pension costs (Note 4)     1 762 142     1 525 248 
Staff gratuity 1 543 350    1 688 775    

  26 077 821   25 460 851 
3 FINANCE INCOME

Interest income - Bank        580 117        697 380 
Unrealised exchange gain/(loss) on cash and cash equivalents                              

       580 117        697 011 
4 PENSION FUND

- (369)
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 The Centre operates a defined contribution pension plan for its employees which provides for a 
pension based on the length of service. The plan is administered by Alexander Forbes (Botswana) 
Limited. Provision is made for gratuity for all contracted employees in terms of their respective 
employment contracts.

 A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Centre pays fixed contributions into 
a separate entity. The Centre has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions 
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits in the current and prior 
periods.

5  INCOME TAX

 Botswana National Productivity Centre being an entity set up by the Government of Botswana, 
is exempt from tax under the provision of paragraph (ii) of Part I of the second schedule of the 
Income Tax Act 1995 as amended.

6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

 Financial Risk Factors

 The Centre’s activities may expose it to a variety of financial risks such as market risk (including 
currency risk, fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and 
liquidity risk. The Centre’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability 
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Centre’s financial 
performance. 

 Foreign Currency Risk

 As the Centre has no significant financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, the 
Centre’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in foreign 
currency exchange rates.
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6     FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

 Cash Flow and Fair Value Interest Rate Risk

 The fluctuation in interest rates impacts on the value of short-term cash investments, giving 
rise to interest rate risk. Cash is managed to ensure surplus funds are invested in a manner to 
achieve maximum returns while minimising risk.

 Price Risk

 The Centre is not exposed to any price risks such as equity price risk, prepayment risk, and 
residual value risk.

 Credit Risk

 Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting 
in financial loss to the Centre. As at 31 March 2021, the Centre’s maximum exposure to credit 
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Centre due to failure to discharge an obligation 
by the counterparties arises from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial 
assets as stated in the statement of financial position.

 In order to minimise credit risk, the Centre has adopted a policy of dealing with creditworthy 
counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. Credit approvals 
and other monitoring procedures are also in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken to 
recover overdue debts. The Centre does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements 
to cover its credit risks associated with its financial assets.

 The Centre applies the simplified approach to providing for expected credit losses as 
prescribed by IFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all short-
term receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, short-term receivables have been 
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The loss allowance 
as at 31 March 2021 is determined as follows:
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IFRS 9: Impairment Provision Matrix as at 31 March 2021

IFRS 9: Impairment Provision Matrix as at 31 March 2020

31-60 DAYS 91+ DAYS TOTAL
      362 055      873 112    1 806 807 

     (196 694)    (873 112)   (1 237 159)

      165 361                -       569 648 

IFRS 9: Impairment Provision Matrix as at 31 March 2019

31-60 DAYS 91+ DAYS TOTAL
   1 060 461      867 863    2 791 656 

Amount not provided**       (10 665)    (412 311)     (466 146)
Less: Specific provision         (5 183)    (359 827)     (447 854)
Carrying net of specific provision    1 044 613       95 725    1 877 656 

32.7% 100.0% 13.8%
     (341 617)      (95 725)     (521 028)

      702 996                -    1 356 628 

**Amount not provided for relates to a receivable from a single debtor (Curry pot) due to reporting
    date which management believes is still collectible in full based on historical behaviour.

Reconciliation of impairment loss for trade receivables 2021 2020
Description P P
At 1 April - calculated under IAS 39 - -
Amounts restated through opening accumulated surplus 
Opening loss allowance as at 1 April 2019 - Under IFRS 9 1 237 159 968 850     
Increase/(decrease) in receivables loss allowance during the period (143 675)   268 309     
As at 31 March 1 093 484    1 237 159 

Other receivables:
Balance at beginning of year       42 795         42 795 
Balance at end of year       42 795         42 795 

Description

Gross carrying amount (P)
Less: Collective expected loss rate 
(P) 
Loss allowance

Net carrying amount

Description
Gross carrying amount
Less: Collective expected loss rate 
(P) 
Loss allowance

Net carrying amount

Description
Gross carrying amount

Less: Collective expected loss rate 
Loss allowance

Net carrying amount

31-60 DAYS

      191 142 

      (95 844)

        95 298 

50.14%

91+ DAYS

     631 287 

   (631 287)

               - 

100.00%

TOTAL

   2 132 882 

  (1 093 484)

   1 039 398 

51.27%

0-30 DAYS
    470 020 

     (76 519)

    393 501 

0-30 DAYS

  1 034 718 

12.94%

   (133 913)

    900 805 

16.3% 54.3% 68.5%100.0%

0-30 DAYS
    737 318 
               - 
               - 
    737 318 

11.4%
     (83 686)

    653 632 

61-90 DAYS
      101 620 

      (90 834)

        10 786 

61-90 DAYS
      126 014 
      (43 170)
      (82 844)
                 - 

0.0%
                 - 

                 - 

61-90 DAYS

      275 735 

     (232 439)

        43 296 

84.30%

89.4%
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Description
Gross carrying amount
Less: Collective expected loss rate 
(P) 
Loss allowance

Net carrying amount

Description
Gross carrying amount

Less: Collective expected loss rate 
Loss allowance

Net carrying amount

31-60 DAYS

      191 142 

      (95 844)

        95 298 

50.14%

91+ DAYS

     631 287 

   (631 287)

               - 

100.00%

TOTAL

   2 132 882 

  (1 093 484)

   1 039 398 

51.27%

0-30 DAYS
    470 020 

     (76 519)

    393 501 

0-30 DAYS

  1 034 718 

12.94%

   (133 913)

    900 805 

16.3% 54.3% 68.5%100.0%

0-30 DAYS
    737 318 
               - 
               - 
    737 318 

11.4%
     (83 686)

    653 632 

61-90 DAYS
      101 620 

      (90 834)

        10 786 

61-90 DAYS
      126 014 
      (43 170)
      (82 844)
                 - 

0.0%
                 - 

                 - 

61-90 DAYS

      275 735 

     (232 439)

        43 296 

84.30%

89.4%
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**Amount not provided for relates to a receivable from a single debtor (Curry pot) due to reporting

Financial Instruments

As at 31 March 2021
BWP ZAR Total

Trade and other receivables 1 102 079    1 102 079    
Cash and cash equivalents 23 069 173  23 069 173  

24 171 252  -       24 171 252  

Trade and other payables 5 057 473    -       5 057 473    

As at 31 March 2020
Trade and other receivables 840 134       840 134       
Cash and cash equivalents 23 025 680  23 025 680  

23 865 814  -       23 865 814  

Trade and other payables 1 197 646    -       1 197 646    

6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Analysis of Financial Instruments

Financial instruments by category

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:

Notes 2021 2020

Assets as per the statement of financial position P P

Trade and other receivables 9 1 102 079  840 134
Cash and cash equivalents 10 23 069 173 23 025 680

24 171 252 23 865 814  
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost

Liabilities as per the statement of financial position
Trade and other payables 13 5 057 473   1 197 646 

Financial assets at amortised cost
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**Amount not provided for relates to a receivable from a single debtor (Curry pot) due to reporting

Financial Instruments

As at 31 March 2021
BWP ZAR Total

Trade and other receivables 1 102 079    1 102 079    
Cash and cash equivalents 23 069 173  23 069 173  

24 171 252  -       24 171 252  

Trade and other payables 5 057 473    -       5 057 473    

As at 31 March 2020
Trade and other receivables 840 134       840 134       
Cash and cash equivalents 23 025 680  23 025 680  

23 865 814  -       23 865 814  

Trade and other payables 1 197 646    -       1 197 646    

6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Analysis of Financial Instruments

Financial instruments by category

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:

Notes 2021 2020

Assets as per the statement of financial position P P

Trade and other receivables 9 1 102 079  840 134
Cash and cash equivalents 10 23 069 173 23 025 680

24 171 252 23 865 814  
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost

Liabilities as per the statement of financial position
Trade and other payables 13 5 057 473   1 197 646 

Financial assets at amortised cost
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7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

2021 2020
P P

Cost 795 729      795 729      
Accumulated depreciation (795 729)    (795 729)    

-            -            

8 INVENTORIES

Stores and consumables at cost 451 434      351 939      

Opening balance of inventory 351 939      256 337      
Add: Purchases 281 680      467 310      

633 619      723 647      
Less: Inventory (write-downs)/write-ups (88)             (24 683)      
Less: Closing balance of inventory (451 434)    (351 939)    
Inventories recognised as an expense during the year       182 097       347 025 

9 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables 2 132 881   1 806 807   
Less: provision for impairment (1 093 484)  (1 237 159)  

1 039 397   569 648      
Deposits and prepayments 275 179      635 811      
Other receivables 105 477      313 281      
Less: provision for impairment (42 795)      (42 795)      

   1 377 258    1 475 945 
Reconciliation of impairment loss for trade and other receivables

Trade receivables
At 1 April - calculated under IAS 39
Amount adjusted to the opening accumulated surplus
Opening loss allowance 1 237 159   968 850      
Increase/(decrease) in receivables loss allowance during the period      (143 675) 268 309      
As at 31 March 1 093 484      1 237 159 

Other receivables:
Balance at beginning of year         42 795         42 795 
Balance at end of year         42 795         42 795 

Residential properties included under staff housing were revalued on 29 March 2019 for the year 
ended 31 March 2019 by Kwena Property Services Proprietary Limited, an independent valuer. 
Residential properties were valued at P2 895 000 based on open market value. The resulting surplus 
of P446 444 was recognised in other comprehensive income and credited to the revaluation reserve 
within statement of changes in funds.  

The fair value measurement for both properties has been categorised as a Level 3 fair value based  
on the inputs to the valuation technique used.

Had the residential properties  been carried at cost without any revaluation adjustment, the 
respective, carrying amount would be as follows:

The Centre has credit terms of 30 days (2020: 30 days) after which amounts  are considered to be past due. 
The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are a reasonable approximation of their fair values as at 
the end of the reporting period.

The recognition and release of provision for impairment of trade and other receivables have been included in 
administrative expenses in the statement of comprehensive income. Amounts charged to the allowance 
account are generally written off, when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash. 

BOTSWANA NATIONAL PRODUCTIVITY CENTRE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2020

2021 2020
10 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS P P

Bank balances 3 529 463   1 422 834   
Cash on hand 2 941          1 304          
Short term deposits 13 494 690  16 888 640  
Gratuity Investment Account 6 042 062   4 556 138   
Gratuity Trust Account 17              156 764      

23 069 173  23 025 680  

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, the year-end cash 
and cash equivalents comprises the following:
Cash at bank 23 066 232  23 024 376  
Cash on hand 2 941          1 304          

23 069 173  23 025 680  
11 CAPITAL GRANTS

Restated
Capital grants (Note 11.1) 584 471      1 547 137   
Unutilised capital grants (Note 11.2) 620 052      620 052       

1 204 523   2 167 189   
11.1 Capital grants

The Centre receives grants from Government based on the budget  
requirements approved by the Board. These funds are not refundable 
by the Centre to the Government. 

Capital grants at beginning of year 1 547 137   2 975 038   
Amortisation of capital grants (962 666)     (1 059 270)  
Transfer to income on disposed property, plant and equipment -             (368 631)     
Capital grants at end of year 584 471      1 547 137   

11.2 Unutilised capital grants

Unutilised capital grants represent the amounts not fully utilised during  
the year and carried forward for utilisation in future periods. These are 
segregated from the capital grants to monitor the unutilised portion 
and match utilisation with the assets acquired. 

Unutilised capital grants at end of year 620 052      620 052      

12 REVALUATION RESERVE

Balance at end of year 4 155 152   4 155 152   

The revaluation reserve arises as a result of revaluation of residential 
properties to reflect the current market value. There are no 
restrictions on the utilisation of the revaluation reserve.  

13 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables 258 982      118 709      
Acrruals 1 655 345   743 221      
Paye payable 2 666 804   -             
Other accounts payable 476 342      335 716      
Provisions (Note 13.1) 9 421 073   7 314 761   

14 478 546  8 512 407   
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13 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

Payroll Accruals Leave pay Gratuity Total
P P P

Balance at the beginning of year 2 970 282 4 344 479    7 314 761      
Provisions for the year 937 751    2 670 336    3 608 087      
Payments made during the year (220 683)   (1 281 092)   (1 501 775)     
Balance at end of year 3 687 350 5 733 723    9 421 073      

14 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Centre's related parties constitute the parent ministry and the department where the Centre 
reports being the Ministry of Employment, Labour, Productivity and Skills Development.

The Centre has a related party relationship with its directors and executive officers as well as entities 
that are controlled by those directors and executive officers.

During the year the Centre has entered into the following 2021 2020
transactions with its related parties: P P

Sale of Services to Ministry of Employment, Labour 
Productivity and Skills Development 5 025           152 463         
Recurrent Grant received from Ministry of Employment 
Labour Productivity and Skills Development 34 513 328  38 241 920    
Project grants received from Ministry of Employment 
Labour Productivity and Skills Development -              1 200 000      
Remuneration paid to key management 6 161 279    6 092 566      
Pension costs for key management personnel 71 977         69 900           
Gratuity costs for key management personnel 1 126 986    1 076 786      
Board sitting fees paid to board members 146 790       94 760           

The following are balance due to related parties:
Provision for employee benefits for key management personnel 2 964 002    2 397 646      

Balance at 
15 PROJECT GRANTS beginning Funds Transfer Balance at

of year received  in(out) Expenditure end of year
Year ended 31 March 2021 P P P P P
Maintenance Project 219 501     -           -           -              219 501         

6 545         -           -              6 545            
Work Ethic Project 193 185     -           -          (46 432)        146 753         
ICT Project 1 251 866   -           -          -              1 251 866      

1 671 097   -           -          (46 432)        1 624 665      
Year ended 31 March 2020
Maintenance Project 219 501     -           - -              219 501         

6 545         -           -              6 545            
Work Ethic Project 237 920     -           - (44 735)        193 185         
ICT Project 51 866       1 200 000 - -              1 251 866      
Total 515 832     1 200 000 - (44 735)        1 671 097      

The projects grants amounts arise as a result of on going funded project by the Government of Botswana.

Botswana Quality Workforce 

Botswana Quality Workforce 

Gratuity

Certain employees receive terminal gratuities in accordance with their contracts of employment. 
An accrual is made for the estimated liability towards such employees up to the reporting date.

Leave pay

Paid absences are accounted for on an accrual basis over the period in which employees have provided 
services.

16 LEASES

The Centre as a lessee (IFRS 16)

The Centre leases an office property in Francistown. Leases are negotiable for an average term of three 
years and rentals are fixed for an average of one year with an escalation clause at prevailing inflation
rate per annum from the first day of each lease year, or as otherwise may be negotiated.

The Centre also leases an office complex in Gaborone . Leases are negotiable for an average term of  
50 years and rentals are fixed for an average of five years after which they are reviewed to open 
market value.

Right-of-use assets relates to leased property and is presented separately.

 Opening  Closing  
 Carrying Carrying

Value Additions Depreciation Value

Right of use assets P P P P
Francistown office building 974 426     401 390                (409 277)       966 539    
Gaborone office complex -            2 789 389 (18 567)        2 770 822 

974 426     3 190 779 (427 844)       3 737 361 

Right of use assets
Francistown office building -            1 364 196              (389 770)       974 426    

Lease liabilities relates to leased property and is presented separately.

 Opening 
 Carrying

Value Remeasurements Payments

Lease liabilities P P P P
Francistown office building 1 003 697  401 390                (387 298)       1 017 789 
Gaborone office complex* -            2 775 082 (3 905) 2 771 177 

1 003 697  3 176 472 (391 203)       3 788 966 

Lease liabilities 
Francistown office building -            1 364 196 (360 499) 1 003 697 

2021 2020
Other Disclosure P P
Interest expenses on lease liabilities (427 844)       (88 673)     
Total cash outflow from leases (36 641)        271 826    

Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows
Not later than 1 year 604 375        449 172    
Between two and five years 1 412 342     673 758    
Over five years 6 932 401     -           
Total undiscounted lease liabilities at 31 March 2021 8 949 118     1 122 930 

2021

2020

2021

2020

*For the Gaborone office complex, Botswana National Productivity Centre has entered lease agreement 
with The Government of The Republic of Botswana for a period of 50 years starting from 1st December 2020.
Botswana National Productivity Centre have an option to purchase the leased premises at any time during
the lease period. The Centre recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets 
representing the right to use the underlying assets. The rentals are fixed for an average of five years after 
which they are reviewed to open market value.    

 Closing  
Carrying

Value
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13 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)
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16 LEASES (CONTINUED) 2021 Restated 2020
P P

Discounted lease liabilities 
Current 571 307     383 931     
Non-current 3 231 965  619 766     
Total discounted lease liabilities at 31 March 2021 3 803 272  1 003 697  

Amounts recognised in the profit and loss
Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets (427 844)    (389 770)    
Interest expense on lease liabilities (109 702)    (88 673)     

The Centre as a lessor

Operating lease relates to the restaurant facility within the Centre's Complex in 
Gaborone leased out and the residential property leased out on a 2 year term 
with no escalation for the duration of the contract. The tenants do not have an 
option to purchase the leased assets at the expiry of the lease periods.

2021 2020
Lease income received P P
Contractual revenue 166 964     294 643     

166 964     294 643     

The future aggregate minimum lease income under 
non-cancellable operating lease arrangements are 
as follows:

Not later than 1 year 260 526     88 393       
Between two and five years 154 386     36 830       

414 912     125 223     

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
2020 2019

Property plant and equipment P P
Previously stated 56 641 122       58 947 991     
Adjustments (50 429 202)     (52 300 000)    
Restated balance 6 211 920       6 647 991     

Capital grant
Previously stated 45 403 242       48 747 997     
Adjustments (43 236 053)     (45 152 907)    
Restated balance 2 167 189       3 595 090     

Accumulated surplus
Previously stated 14 589 576       15 029 459     
Adjustments (59 208)            (13 152)          
Restated balance 14 530 368     15 016 307   

Revaluation reserve
Previously stated 11 289 093       11 289 093     
Adjustments (7 133 941)       (7 133 941)     
Restated balance 4 155 152       4 155 152     

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

Administrative expenses
Previously stated (46 884 855)     
Adjustments 1 870 798        
Restated Balance (45 014 057)   

Amortisation of capital grants
Previously stated 2 976 124        
Adjustments (1 916 854)       
Restated Balance 1 059 270       

        

Notes 2021 Restated 2020
P P

Revenue
Grant received 1 34 559 760  38 286 655  
Sale of services 1 3 186 132   3 721 241   

Other operating income
Rental income 166 964      294 643      
(Loss)/Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment -             (63 434)       
Other income 206 793      252 774      

373 757      483 983      

Capital grants transferred to income on disposal of assets -             368 631      
Amortisation of capital grants 962 666      1 059 270   

Administrative Expenses
Advertising 347 857      229 447      
Auditors' remuneration 229 733      171 163      
Bank charges 23 308        29 835        
Board expenses 273 001      613 691      
Cleaning 134 184      236 045      
Computer expenses 240 281      163 745      
Consulting fees -             186 606      
Depreciation - Property, Plant and Equipment 1 092 923   1 153 416   
Depreciation - Right of use assets 427 844      389 770      
General expenses 112 532      361 952      
Hire of equipment 365 618      660 059      
Impairment of receivables -             268 309      
Insurance 655 172      626 146      
Legal expenses 60 089        92 538        
Operating lease rentals -             -             
Participants catering 185 899      461 750      
Petrol and oil 127 158      184 352      
Postage costs 2 788          21 128        
Printing and stationery 294 563      306 594      
Project expenses 2 175 618   209 474      
Promotions 681 412      795 974      
Recruitment expenses 98 998        72 342        
Remuneration paid to directors and key management 7 360 242   7 239 252   
Repairs and maintenance 777 787      1 068 086   
Security costs 326 875      178 523      
Staff costs 26 077 821  25 460 851  
Staff welfare 33 874        106 945      
Subscriptions 1 456 405   1 113 585   
Telephone and fax 283 672      300 119      
Training - staff 8 052          624 103      
Travel 89 200        739 444      
Utilities 654 775      948 813      

44 597 681  45 014 057  

Operating deficit (5 515 366)  (1 094 277)  

This detailed income statement does not form part of the audited financial statements covered by 
the audit opinion on pages 4 to 6.
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16 LEASES (CONTINUED) 2021 Restated 2020
P P

Discounted lease liabilities 
Current 571 307     383 931     
Non-current 3 231 965  619 766     
Total discounted lease liabilities at 31 March 2021 3 803 272  1 003 697  

Amounts recognised in the profit and loss
Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets (427 844)    (389 770)    
Interest expense on lease liabilities (109 702)    (88 673)     

The Centre as a lessor

Operating lease relates to the restaurant facility within the Centre's Complex in 
Gaborone leased out and the residential property leased out on a 2 year term 
with no escalation for the duration of the contract. The tenants do not have an 
option to purchase the leased assets at the expiry of the lease periods.

2021 2020
Lease income received P P
Contractual revenue 166 964     294 643     

166 964     294 643     

The future aggregate minimum lease income under 
non-cancellable operating lease arrangements are 
as follows:

Not later than 1 year 260 526     88 393       
Between two and five years 154 386     36 830       

414 912     125 223     

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
2020 2019

Property plant and equipment P P
Previously stated 56 641 122       58 947 991     
Adjustments (50 429 202)     (52 300 000)    
Restated balance 6 211 920       6 647 991     

Capital grant
Previously stated 45 403 242       48 747 997     
Adjustments (43 236 053)     (45 152 907)    
Restated balance 2 167 189       3 595 090     

Accumulated surplus
Previously stated 14 589 576       15 029 459     
Adjustments (59 208)            (13 152)          
Restated balance 14 530 368     15 016 307   

Revaluation reserve
Previously stated 11 289 093       11 289 093     
Adjustments (7 133 941)       (7 133 941)     
Restated balance 4 155 152       4 155 152     

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

Administrative expenses
Previously stated (46 884 855)     
Adjustments 1 870 798        
Restated Balance (45 014 057)   

Amortisation of capital grants
Previously stated 2 976 124        
Adjustments (1 916 854)       
Restated Balance 1 059 270       

        

Notes 2021 Restated 2020
P P

Revenue
Grant received 1 34 559 760  38 286 655  
Sale of services 1 3 186 132   3 721 241   

Other operating income
Rental income 166 964      294 643      
(Loss)/Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment -             (63 434)       
Other income 206 793      252 774      

373 757      483 983      

Capital grants transferred to income on disposal of assets -             368 631      
Amortisation of capital grants 962 666      1 059 270   

Administrative Expenses
Advertising 347 857      229 447      
Auditors' remuneration 229 733      171 163      
Bank charges 23 308        29 835        
Board expenses 273 001      613 691      
Cleaning 134 184      236 045      
Computer expenses 240 281      163 745      
Consulting fees -             186 606      
Depreciation - Property, Plant and Equipment 1 092 923   1 153 416   
Depreciation - Right of use assets 427 844      389 770      
General expenses 112 532      361 952      
Hire of equipment 365 618      660 059      
Impairment of receivables -             268 309      
Insurance 655 172      626 146      
Legal expenses 60 089        92 538        
Operating lease rentals -             -             
Participants catering 185 899      461 750      
Petrol and oil 127 158      184 352      
Postage costs 2 788          21 128        
Printing and stationery 294 563      306 594      
Project expenses 2 175 618   209 474      
Promotions 681 412      795 974      
Recruitment expenses 98 998        72 342        
Remuneration paid to directors and key management 7 360 242   7 239 252   
Repairs and maintenance 777 787      1 068 086   
Security costs 326 875      178 523      
Staff costs 26 077 821  25 460 851  
Staff welfare 33 874        106 945      
Subscriptions 1 456 405   1 113 585   
Telephone and fax 283 672      300 119      
Training - staff 8 052          624 103      
Travel 89 200        739 444      
Utilities 654 775      948 813      

44 597 681  45 014 057  

Operating deficit (5 515 366)  (1 094 277)  

This detailed income statement does not form part of the audited financial statements covered by 
the audit opinion on pages 4 to 6.
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